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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

X] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTNOL3 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE QUARTERLY PERIOD ENDED: MARCH 31, 2010
OR

[] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SE{ON 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER: 1-33796

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its Gnart

MARYLAND 26-0630461
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (IRS Employer Identification No

1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK
(Address of principal executive offices)

10036
(Zip Code)

(646) 454-3759
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area fode

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant éE)filed all documents and reports required talbd by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdia months (or for such shorter period that thgi®eant was required to file such
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filsggirements for the past 90 days:
Yesd NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant masnétted electronically and posted on its corpokéib site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRiie 405 of Regulation S-T (Section 232.405 & thapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such files).

YesO NoO

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantl&gsge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aocelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definition of “accelerated filer,”rja accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting camy’ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fil&l . Accelerated fileld . Non-accelerated filell Smaller reporting compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Brgfe Act).
YesO NoHM
APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS:
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiiiedassuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdbiedracticable date:

Class Outstanding at May 10, 20:
Common Stock, $.01 par val 768,122,73"
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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag

(unaudited
March 31, December 3!
2010 2009 (1)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 44200 $ 24,27¢
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vall

Senior 1,429,53! 2,022,401

Subordinatet 947,96: 376,45¢

Senior, no-retained 1,646,08 -
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 1,558,79! 1,690,02!
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aaee for loan losses of $4.6 million and
$4.6 million, respectivel 441,34° 470,53:
Receivable for investments sc 47,18¢ -
Accrued interest receivab 39,63 33,12¢
Other asset 1,451 1,494
Total asset $ 6,156,190 $ 4,618,32
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreemel $ 1,538,820 $ 1,716,39
Repurchase agreements with affilia 147,41 259,00
Securitized dek 364,66! 390,35(
Securitized debt, ni-retained 1,636,43 -
Payable for investments purchas 41,82: -
Accrued interest payab 9,691 3,23¢
Dividends payabl 113,79: 113,78t
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 48¢ 472
Investment management fees payable to affi 8,114 8,51¢
Total liabilities $ 3,861,240 $ 2,491,76
Commitments and Contingencies (Note - -
Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,0000000shares authorized, 670,371,002 and 670,371,
shares issued and outstanding, respect $ 6,69¢ $ 6,69:
Additional paic-in-capital 2,290,63! 2,290,61.
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 144,97¢ (99,759
Accumulated defici (147,367 (70,99

Total stockholders' equit 2,29494 $ 2,126,56.

|

Total liabilities and stockholders' equ 6,156,190 $ 4,618,32

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated finansiatements at December 31, 2C
See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slag
(unaudited

SIVE INCOME

For the quarters endt

March 31, March 31,
2010 2009

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 128,98: $ 28,00
Interest expens 7,37¢ 9,042
Interest income, ne¢-retainec 50,86: -
Interest expense, n-retainec 33,83( -
Net interest incom 138,64: 18,96¢
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (22,687 -
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other compredie income 20,14: -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (2,544 -
Other (losses) gains
Realized gains on sales of investments, 34z 3,627
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS (949 -
Total other (losses) gail (607) 3,62
Net investment income 135,49( 22,59:
Other expenses
Management fe 8,11« 2,58:
Provision for loan losse 60€ 234
General and administrative expen 1,16(C 90%
Total other expense 9,88( 3,722
Income before income taxe 125,61( 18,87(
Income taxe: - 1
Net income $ 125,61 $ 18,86¢
Net income per sha-basic and dilute: $ 0.1¢ $ 0.11
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 670,371,02 177,196,95
Comprehensive income
Net income $ 125,61 $ 18,86¢
Other comprehensive incorr
Unrealized gains on availal-for-sale securities, ni 241,58: 13,59(
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetket income for other-thaemporary credit impairmel
losses 2,544 -
Reclassification adjustment for realized lossein&ancluded in net incom 607 (3,629
Other comprehensive incomr 244,73 9,96:
Comprehensive incon $ 370,34. $ 28,83:

See notes to consolidated financial statem




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢
(unaudited’

Accumulated

Common StockPar  Additional Other
Paid-in Comprehensiv ~ Accumulatec
Value Capital Income Deficit Total
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 1,76C $ 831,96t $ (266,669 $ (152,60) $ 414 45!
Net income - - - 18,86¢ 18,86¢
Other comprehensive incor - - 9,96: - 9,96:
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 1 104 - - 10t
Common dividends declared, $0.06 per sl - - - (10,56€) (10,56¢)
Balance, March 31, 20( $ 1,761 $ 832,07( $ (256,709 $ (144,300 $ 432,82t
Accumulated
Common StockPar  Additional Other
Paid-in Comprehensiv  Accumulatec
Value Capital Income Deficit Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 6,69: $ 2,290,61- $ (99,759 $ (70,99) $ 2,126,56:
Net income - - - 125,61( 125,61(
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle (88,187 (88,187
Other comprehensive incor - - 244.73. - 244,73.
Proceeds from common stock offerir - (200 - - (200
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 1 122 - - 122
Common dividends declared, $0.17 per sl - - - (113,799 (113,799
Balance, March 31, 201 $ 6,69/ $ 2,290,63 $ 14497¢ $ (147,36) $ 2,294,94

See notes to consolidated financial statem:




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(dollars in thousand:

For the For the
Quarter Quarter
Ended Marct Ended Marct
31, 31,
2010 2009

Cash Flows From Operating Activites:
Net income $ 125,61( $ 18,86¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Accretion of investment discour (53,847 (1,259
Realized gain on sale of investme (342) (3,627
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS 94¢ -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 2,54¢ -
Provision for loan losse 60€ 234
Restricted stock gran 12z 104
Changes in operating asse

Increase in accrued interest receivi (6,509 (1,267

Decrease in other ass 43 30¢
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase in accounts payable and other liads| 17 151

(Decrease) increase in investment managemenpteable to affiliat (40%) 291

Increase in accrued interest paye 6,45¢€ 4
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 75,25( $ 13,82(
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
MortgageBacked Securities portfolic

Purchase $ (442919) $ (607,799

Sales 44,21 548,43

Principal payment 184,83: 38,551
MortgageBacked Securities portfolio, n-retained:

Principal payment 145,42: -
Securitized loans

Principal payment 28,66¢ 16,91’
Net cash used in investing activiti $ (39,790 $ (3,899
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 6,776,121 $ 29,325,63

Payments on repurchase agreem (7,065,29)  (29,327,82)

Net expenses from common stock offeri (100 -

Payments on securitized debt borrowi (26,577) (15,970

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,-retained 498,72( -

Payments on securitized debt borrowings-retainec (84,639 -

Common dividends pa (113,789 (7,040
Net cash used in financing activiti $ (15,539 $ (25,209
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ 19,92 % (15,280)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 24.,27¢ 27,48(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 44200 $ 12,20(
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest pait $ 34,748 $ 9,03¢

Taxes pait $ - $ =
Non cash investing activities:

Payable for investments purcha: $ 41,82 $ 193,97:

Net change in unrealized gain on avail-for sale securitie $ 241,58, $ 13,59(
Non cash financing activities;

Common dividends declared, not yet ¢ $ 113,79: $ 10,56¢

See notes to consolidated financial statem






CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED MARCH 31, 2010
(Unaudited)

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (“Companwas organized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The fgizoyym commenced operations
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial pubffering. The Company has elected to be tead real estate investment ti
(“REIT"), under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 amended. As long as the Company qualifiesRisIg, the Company will generally
not be subject to U.S. federal or state corpomated on its income to the extent that the Compastyilalites at least 90% of its taxable net
income to its stockholders. In July 2008, the Camypformed Chimera Securities Holdings, LLC, a igrolwned subsidiary. In June 2009,
the Company formed Chimera Asset Holding LLC anéh@na Holding LLC, both wholly-owned subsidiarieis. January 2010, the
Company formed Chimera Special Holding, LLC whishaiwholly-owned subsidiary of Chimera Asset HaddibLC. Chimera Securities
Holdings LLC, Chimera Asset Holding LLC, Chimeralliog, LLC, and Chimera Special Holding, LLC areafified REIT
subsidiaries. Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (1aly”) owns approximately 6.7% of the Company’s coom shares. The Company is
managed by Fixed Income Discount Advisory CompdRIDAC”), an investment advisor registered with tBecurities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subisiy of Annaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its wholly-owned subsiés, Chimera Securities
Holdings, LLC, Chimera Holding LLC, Chimera AsseblHing LLC and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Chim&pecial Holding, LLC. All
intercompany balances and transactions have barimaied.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handasiddeposited overnight in money market funds.

(c) Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-Baekl Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baskedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in ohtigns backed by pools of
mortgage loans. The Company classifies its inment securities as either “trading,” “available-ale,” or “held-to-maturity.” In addition,
the Company delineates between Agency, non-Agear@y hon-Agency, non-retained securities. Non-Agenon-retained securities are
further detailed in Note 8 to these consolidatedricial statements.

The Company holds its RMBS as available-for-saeords investments at estimated fair value as itbestin Note 5 of these
consolidated financial statements, and includesalized gains and losses in other comprehensiweriadn the consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income. From tintient®, as part of the overall management of itsfptiot, the Company may sell any of its
RMBS investments and recognize a realized gainss &s a component of earnings in the consolidittéements of operations and
comprehensive income utilizing the specific ideagifion method.

Interest income on RMBS is computed on the remgipitincipal balance of the investment securityerfium or discount
amortization/accretion on RMBS that is guarantestbgrincipal and/or interest repayment by agenofahe U.S. Government or federally
chartered corporations such as Ginnie Mae, Frdddieor Fannie Mae (“Agency RMBS”) is recognized iotfee life of the investment using
the effective interest method Premium or discount amortization/accretion on-Agency RMBS is recognized in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 32Byestment-Other For non-Agency RMBS the Company estimates atithe of purchase
expected future cash flows, prepayment speedsit tvedes, loss severity, and loss timing basetherCompany’s observation of available
market data, its experience, and the collectivgiuent of its management team to determine theteféeimterest rate on the RMBS. Not less
than quarterly, the Company reevaluates, and ésegary, makes adjustments to its analysis utiliziteyrnal models, external market research
and sources in conjunction with its view on perfanoe in the non-Agency RMBS sector. Changes t€trmpanys assumptions subsequ
to the purchase date may increase or decreasenthiéization/accretion of premiums and discountsohtffects interest income. Changes to
assumptions that decrease expected future cash ftay result in other-than-temporary impairment.
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The Company fair values it RMBS. Please see Natetbese consolidated financial statements fdseudsion of the Company’s
fair valuation methods.

(d) Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratagoarhe Company purchases
pools of residential mortgage loans through a $ejesup of originators. Mortgage loans are desigd as held for investment, recorded on
trade date, and are carried at their principalrmdautstanding, plus any premiums or discounss, dowances for loan losses. Interest
income on loans held for investment is recognizegt the life of the investment using the effeciivierest method. Income recognition is
suspended for loans when, in the opinion of managena full recovery of income and principal becsrdeubtful. Income recognition is
resumed when the loan becomes contractually cuarehperformance is demonstrated to be resumed.Company estimates fair value of
securitized loans as described in Note 5 of thessalidated financial statements.

(e) Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company has established an allowance for lossek at a level that management believes is amdelo@sed on an evaluation of
known and inherent risks related to the Compargés Iportfolio. The estimate is based on a vanéfactors including current economic
conditions, industry loss experience, the loanioatpr’'s loss experience, credit quality trendanlgortfolio composition, delinquency trends,
national and local economic trends, national unegrpkent data, changes in housing appreciation pred@tion and whether specific
geographic areas where the Company has significantconcentrations are experiencing adverse ecieremnditions and events such as
natural disasters that may affect the local econonproperty values. Upon purchase of a pool ofispghe Company obtains written
representations and warranties from the selletgtiegaCompany could be reimbursed for the valugaefloan if the loan fails to meet the
agreed upon origination standards. While the Combeas little history of its own to establish lda@nds, delinquency trends of the
originators and the current market conditions aidétermining the allowance for loan losses. Thm@any also performs due diligence
procedures on a sample of loans that met its @itkiring the purchase process. The Company leasett an unallocated provision for
probable loan losses estimated as a percentage ofinaining unpaid principal balance on the lodflanagement’s estimate is based on
historical experience of similarly underwritten fgo

When the Company determines it is probable thatiBpeontractually due amounts are uncollectilthes amount is considered
impaired. Where impairment is indicated, a vahmtivrite-off is measured based upon the excedseofecorded investment over the net fair
value of the collateral, reduced by selling cogtay deficiency between the carrying amount of ased and the net sales price of repossesse
collateral is charged to the allowance for loarséss

(f) Repurchase Agreements

The Company may finance the acquisition of its gtreent securities through the use of repurchasseagnts. Repurchase
agreements are treated as collateralized finaricamgactions and are carried at their contractualuats, including accrued interest, as
specified in the respective agreements.

(9) Securitized Debt and Securitized Debt-Non Retaed

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarmmation of its residential mortgage loan pord@ind has re-securitized RMBS
to finance its portfolio. Certain transactionsaiwng residential mortgage loans are accounte@sdinancings, and are recorded as an asset
called “Securitized loans held for investment” dhe corresponding debt as “Securitized debt” indbesolidated statements of financial
condition. These securitizations are collateralizg residential adjustable or fixed rate mortglagas that have been placed in a trust ant
interest and principal payments to the debt holdétkat securitization. Re-securitization trarigats classified as “Securitized debt, non-
retained” reflect the transfer to a trust of fix@dadjustable rate RMBS which are classified as“Mgency Mortgage-Backed Securities
Senior, non-retained” that pay interest and prialcgayments to the debt holders of that re-seeatitin. Re-securitization transactions
completed by the Company are accounted for asdinga pursuant to the adoption of ASC 810. The telters of securitized debt and
securitized debt, non-retained have no recourtieet@€ompany. The Company estimates fair valueadistized debt as described in Note 5
to these consolidated financial statements.




(h) Fair Value Disclosure
A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to fair value its financial instrurteeis included in Note 5 to
these consolidated financial statements.

(i) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Adivity

The Company’s policies permit it to enter into gative contracts, including interest rate swapsiatetest rate caps, as a means of
mitigating our interest rate risk. The Company muke to use interest rate derivative instrumentsitigate interest rate risk rather than to
enhance returns. If the Company hedges using Biteate swaps these instruments are accounted ftheer assets or liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial condition, anelmeasured at fair value with realized and uizegigains and losses recognized in
earnings.

The FASB issued additional guidance that attenpisprove the transparency of financial reportiggoboviding additional
information about how derivative and hedging atitigi affect an entity’s financial position, finaatperformance and cash flows. This
guidance changed the disclosure requirements foradiwe instruments and hedging activities by ieqg enhanced disclosure about (1) F
and why an entity uses derivative instrumentsh@®y derivative instruments and related hedged it@rasiccounted for, and (3) how
derivative instruments and related hedged itenectathe entity’s financial position, financial peminance, and cash flows.

In the normal course of business, the Company reayawariety of derivative financial instrumentsrtanage, or hedge, interest rate
risk. These derivative financial instruments museffective in reducing our interest rate risk esqyoe in order to qualify for hedge
accounting. When the terms of an underlying tratisa@re modified, or when the underlying hedgeditteases to exist, all changes in the
fair value of the instrument are included in netime for each period until the derivative instrutmaatures or is settled. Any derivative
instrument used for risk management that does eet the hedging criteria is carried at fair valuthwhe changes in value included in net
income.

The Company uses derivatives for economic hedgimggses rather than speculation and relies on tjonsafrom third parties to
determine fair values. If the Company’s hedgintivéties do not achieve its desired results, thenfany’s reported earnings may be
adversely affected.

(j) Sales and Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactiong/ich it sells financial assets, such as RMBSitgame loans and other
assets. Gains and losses on sales of assetsnapeteal on the specific identification method whegréte Company records a gain or loss on
the difference between the carrying value of treetaand the proceeds from the sale. In addittnCompany from time to time securitize:
re-securitizes assets and sells tranches in thiy meeuritized assets. These transactions magdweded as either a sale and the assets
contributed to the securitization are removed ftbmconsolidated statements of financial conditind a gain or loss is recognized, or as a
financing whereby the assets contributed to thar#iéation are not derecognized but rather thkilitées issued by the securitization are
recorded to reflect the term financing of the assént these securitizations and re-securitizattbeSCompany sometimes retains or acquires
senior or subordinated interests in the securitore@-securitized assets.

(k) Income Taxes
The Company qualifies to be taxed as a REIT, aackfore it generally will not be subject to corpgerdederal, or state income tay
the extent that qualifying distributions are manlstbckholders and the REIT requirements, includiergain asset, income, distribution and
stock ownership tests are met. If the Compangdaib qualify as a REIT and did not qualify forteém statutory relief provisions, the
Company would be subject to federal, state and lncame taxes and may be precluded from qualifgiag REIT for the subsequent four
taxable years following the year in which the RELTalification was lost.

() Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadévliling net income for the period by the weight®everage shares of its
common stock outstanding for that period. Dilutedincome per share takes into account the edfedifutive instruments, such as stock
options, but uses the average share price forahedin determining the number of incremental ekdhat are to be added to the weighted
average number of shares outstanding. The Contpaohyio potentially dilutive securities outstandihging the periods presented.
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(m) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and ittia#s in accordance with
GAAP guidance for compensation to non-employeeAABrequires the Company to measure the fair vafube equity instrument using
the stock prices and other measurement assumpattookthe earlier of either the date at which dguerance commitment by the counterps
is reached or the date at which the counterpapigtformance is complete. Compensation expensedeia the grants of stock and stock
options is recognized over the vesting period ehsgrants based on the fair value of the stockervesting date.

(n) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial steets in conformity with GAAP requires managemenngke estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etassd liabilities and disclosure of contingersieds and reporting period. The most
significant estimates are related to the followialj assets classified as available-for-sale ardeported at their estimated fair value; all
investment securities are amortized/accreted basgiklds that incorporate management’s assumpéeris the expected performance of the
investment over time; loan loss provisions reflaenagement estimates with regard to expected lo§sks securitized loan
portfolio. Actual results could differ from thosstimates.

(o) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (ASC 105)

In June 2009, the Financial Accountingn8ards Board (FASB) issu@the Accounting Standards Codification and the Hielg of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principi&odification” which revises the framework for selecting the aotiog principles to be used in t
preparation of financial statements that are prteskim conformity with Generally Accepted AccoumgtiRrinciples (GAAP). The objective of
the Codification is to establish the FASB ASC asdburce of authoritative accounting principleoggtzed by the FASB. Codification was
effective for the Company as of September 30, 2009adopting the Codification, all non-grandfatii non-SEC accounting literature not
included in the Codification was superseded andngeenon-authoritative. Codification requires aeferences within the Company’s
consolidated financial statements be modified flEASB issues to ASC. However, as recommended i &&B Accounting Standards
Codification Notice to Constituents (v 2.0), then@many does not reference specific sections of th€ Aut will use broad topic references.

The Company'’s recent accounting pronearents section has been formatted to reflect time gaganizational structure as the
ASC. Broad topic references will be updated wighgling content as they are released.

Assets

Receivables (ASC 310)

In April 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-18, whictdeesses the effect of a loan modification wheoaa lis part of a pool
accounted for as a single asset. This updateiekttie treatment of a troubled debt restructuriflgis guidance allows acquired assets, w
have evidence of credit deterioration upon acqaisitnd common risk characteristics, to be accalfuein the aggregate as a pool. Upon
establishment of the pool, the pool becomes thedfiriccounting. Any purchase discount is notated to individual loans, thus all of the
loans in the pool accrete at a single pool ratedas cash flow projections for the pool. Likewigapairment analysis is performed on the
pool as a whole, not on individual loans. Modifioas to loans, even if those modifications aresidered troubled debt restructuring, do not
result in a loan being removed from the pool. Theatment is consistent with the current accognpiractices of the Company and therefore
has no material effect on the Company’s consol@lfitencial statements.
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Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (ASC 320)

New guidance was provided to make impairment guidanore operational and to improve the presentainohdisclosure of other-
than-temporary impairments (OTTI) on debt and ggsitcurities, as well as beneficial interests nuséized financial assets, in financial
statements. This guidance was the result of tkar§ies and Exchange Commission (SEC) mark-to-etastudy mandated under the
Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (EESAhe SEC’s recommendation was to “evaluate tlegl ier modifications (or the
elimination) of current OTTI guidance to provide Bomore uniform system of impairment testing sgadd for financial instruments.” The
guidance revises the OTTI evaluation methodoldgseviously the analytical focus was on whetherdbrmpany had the “intent and ability to
retain its investment in the debt security for a@qubof time sufficient to allow for any anticipateecovery in fair value.” Now the focus is ¢
whether the company (1) has the intent to sellrtiiestment securities, (2) is more likely than twobe required to sell the investment
securities before recovery, or (3) does not exjmentcover the entire amortized cost basis oftlrestment securities. Further, the security is
analyzed for credit loss, (the difference betwédenpresent value of cash flows expected to beatelieand the amortized cost basis). The
credit loss, if any, will then recognized in thatement of operations, while the balance of impaitmelated to other factors will be
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OClYhéfentity intends to sell the security, they Ww#l required to sell the security before its
anticipated recovery, or does not expect to rectheentire amortized cost basis of the secutiiy ftll OTTI will be recognized in the
statement of operations.

OTTI has occurred if there has been an adversegeharfuture estimated cash flows and its impactflected in current
earnings. The determination cannot be overconmadayagement judgment of the probability of collegtill cash flows previously
projected. The objective of an OTTI analysisisietermine whether it is probable that the holdéirealize some portion of the unrealized
loss on an impaired security. Factors to considesn assessing for OTTI includes information alpmst events, current conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts, remaininggatyterms, financial condition of the issuer, estpd defaults, value of underlying
collateral, industry analysis, sector credit ratioigedit enhancement, and financial condition cirgator. The Company’s ndkgency RMBS
and Agency RMBS investments fall under this guigaacd as such, the Company assesses each semu@y Tl based on estimated future
cash flows. This guidance became effective forGbmpany on June 30, 2009.

Broad Transactions

Consolidation (ASC 810)

On January 1, 2009, FASB amended the guidance nangenoncontrolling interests in consolidated finml statements. This
guidance requires classification of noncontrollingerests (previously referred to as “minority netgt”) as part of consolidated net income
including the accumulated amount of noncontroliimtgrests as part of stockholders’ equity. Furttids guidance requires distinction
between equity amounts attributable to controllintgrest and amounts attributable to the noncditpinterests — previously classified as
minority interest outside of stockholders’ equity. addition to these financial reporting chandks guidance provided for significant
changes in accounting related to noncontrollingriedts; specifically, increases and decreasesinadling financial interests in consolidated
subsidiaries are reported in equity similar tosteg stock transactions. If a change in ownershgp apnsolidated subsidiary results in loss of
control and deconsolidation, any retained ownersitgrests are re-measured with the gain or Igssrted in net earnings. For the quarter
ended March 31, 2010, the Company did not havenanycontrolling interests.

Effective January 1, 2010, the consolidation stassldave been amended by ASU 2009-17. This ameantdipdates the existing
standard and eliminates the exemption from conatitid of a Qualified Special Purpose Entity (QSPE)e update requires an enterprise to
perform an analysis to determine whether the erigerg variable interest or interests give it ateolfing financial interest in a variable
interest entity (VIE). The analysis identifies fhdmary beneficiary of a VIE as the enterprise e both: a) the power to direct the activi
that most significantly impact the entity’s economperformance and b) the obligation to absorb msé¢he entity or the right to receive
benefits from the entity which could potentially significant to the VIE. The update requires erdeahdisclosures to provide users of
financial statements with more transparent inforomaabout an enterprises involvement in a VIE. Toenpany determined it is the primary
beneficiary on a number of VIE's formed throughsesuritizations. The Company was required to datete RMBS re-securitization
transactions previously recorded during the yededrDecember 31, 2009 as sales for GAAP beginnitigthe effective date of this
ASU. Consolidation of these transactions altehedpresentation of the consolidated financial statgs by increasing its non-Agency
portfolio and increasing the value of non-recodiagilities for which it has no continuing obligati. The consolidation has reversed
previously recorded GAAP gains on sales of ass#$ed to the re-securitizations undertaken in 200% reversal of this gain will be
accreted over the remaining life of the re-seaegiliassets. The adoption of this guidance hattedsno material changes to the format and
content of the Company’s consolidated financiakstents, as well as enhanced disclosures. Plefesea the discussion in Note 8.
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Effective January 1, 2010, FASB amended the cafeadn standard with ASU 2010-10 which indefinjtellefers the effective date
of ASU 2009-17 for a reporting enterprises intene®ntities for which it is industry practice igsue financial statements in accordance with
investment company standards (ASC 946). Thisrdfis expected to most significantly affect reppay entities in the investment
management industry. This amendment has no effettie Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)

Effective January 1, 2009 and adopted by the Compasspectively, the FASB issued additional guidaattempting to improve the
transparency of financial reporting by mandating pinovision of additional information about how igative and hedging activities affect an
entity’s financial position, financial performance andrctisws. This guidance changed the disclosureirements for derivative instrumel
and hedging activities by requiring enhanced dmale about (1) how and why an entity uses derigdtistruments, (2) how derivative
instruments and related hedged items are accofmteand (3) how derivative instruments and reldtedged items affect an entyfinancia
position, financial performance, and cash flows. atihere to this guidance, qualitative disclosalesut objectives and strategies for using
derivatives, quantitative disclosures about falugaamounts, gains and losses on derivative ingnisn and disclosures about credit-risk-
related contingent features in derivative agreemenist be made. This disclosure framework is oheerto better convey the purpose of
derivative use in terms of the risks that an ernityntending to manage. The adoption of this A®B@ no material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

The FASB issued ASU 2010-8 in February 2010. ABW®8 provided technical corrections to ASC 81hisTupdate provides a
four step analysis to determine whether call orguiions that can accelerate the settlement ofidettuments should be considered clearly
and closely related to the debt host contracit isfdetermined that such option is closely raddtethe host contract, bifurcation of the host
contract from the derivative instrument is not reseey. If an existing hybrid instrument requirdsiication under this update, a one-time
election can be made to utilize the Fair Value @pfor the entire contract. This update is effector the Company January 1, 2010 and has
no effect on the consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2010-11 was issued in March 2010 and definscope exception for embedded derivative featuréshaihvolve only the
transfer of credit risk that is only in the formsfbordination of one financial instrument to amothSuch instruments would not be subject to
bifurcation under ASC 815. This guidance is effexfor the first quarter beginning after June 2610, however early adoption for the first
fiscal quarter is allowed. The Company electeddopt for the first quarter of 2010. Adoption Imaseffect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In response to the deterioration of the credit raemkFASB issued guidance clarifying how fair vataeasurements should be apg
when valuing securities in markets that are navactThe guidance provides an illustrative examptiizing management’s internal cash
flow and discount rate assumptions when relevaséntable data does not exist. It further clarifiess observable market information and
market quotes should be considered when measwingaiue in an inactive market. It reaffirms thation of fair value as an exit price as of
the measurement date and that fair value analysisransactional process and should not be bregublljed to a group of assets. The
guidance was effective upon issuance includingrgrésiods for which financial statements had n@rbissued. The implementation of this
guidance did not have a material impact on theviae of the Company’s assets as the Companytarital valuation methodologies
complied with the new guidance.

In October 2008 EESA was signed into law. Secti8d of the EESA mandated that the SEC conductdy stn mark-to-market
accounting standards. The SEC provided its stodlye U.S. Congress on December 30, 2008. P#reakecommendations within the study
indicated that fair value requirements should be improved throdgbelopment of application and best practices guiddor determining fa
value in illiquid or inactive markets.” As a resaf this study and the recommendations thereimprl 9, 2009, the FASB issued additional
guidance for determining fair value when the voluand level of activity for the asset or liabilitgve significantly decreased when compared
with normal market activity for the asset or lidtyil(or similar assets or liabilities). The guidangives specific factors to evaluate if there has
been a decrease in normal market activity and, ipsavides a methodology to analyze transactiorguoted prices and make necessary
adjustments to fair value. The objective is teed®ine the point within a range of fair value egties that is most representative of fair value
under current market conditions. This guidanceabrexeffective for the Company’s June 30, 2009 tappperiod. The adoption did not
have a material impact on the manner in which tbmgany estimates fair value, nor did it have angdot on the footnote disclosures.
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In August 2009, FASB issued ASU 2009-05 regardirgfair value measurement of liabilities. The gmice stated that a quoted
price for the identical liability when traded asasset in an active market is a Level 1 fair vaheasurement. If the value must be adjusted
for factors specific to the liability, then the adiment to the quoted price of the asset renderfathvalue measurement of the liability a lo
level measurement. This guidance had no matdfadteon the fair valuation of the Company’s lidids as the Company does not fair value
its liabilities.

In September 2009, FASB issued ASU 2009-12 on mizgsthe fair value of certain alternative investitge This guidance offered
investors a practical expedient for measuring #ievialue of investments in certain entities theltulate net asset value (NAV) per share. If
an investment falls within the scope of the ASI, taporting entity is permitted, but not requiredise the investment’s NAV to estimate its
fair value. This guidance had no material effetthee fair valuation of the Company’s assets, astbmpany does not hold any assets
qualifying under this guidance.

In January 2010, FASB issued ASU 20®which increases disclosures regarding the fdirevof assets. The key provisions of
guidance include the requirement to disclose séglgirtne amounts of significant transfers in antafuLevel 1 and Level 2 including a
description of the reason for the transfers. Prgsly this was only required of transfers betweewdl 2 and Level 3 assets. Further,
reporting entities are required to provide fairneameasurement disclosures for each class of aswigbilities; a class is potentially a sul
of the assets or liabilities within a line itemtire statement of financial position. Additionaltiisclosures about the valuation techniques and
inputs used to measure fair value for both recgraind nonrecurring fair value measurements aranestjfor either Level 2 or Level 3
assets. This portion of the guidance is effediiwvehe Company beginning January 1, 2010. Theandd also requires that the disclosure on
any Level 3 assets presents separately informationt purchases, sales, issuances and settlenterdther words, Level 3 assets are
presented on a gross basis rather than as oneméen. However, this last portion of the guidaisceot effective for the Company until
January 1, 2011. Adoption of this guidance resnliacreased footnote disclosure in the Compaagtssolidated financial statements.

Financial Instruments (ASC 825)

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued guidance whidjuiees disclosures about fair value of financiskinments for interim reporting
periods as well as in annual financial statememtss guidance became effective for the Companyg B 2009. The adoption increased
footnote disclosure in the Company’s consolidatedrfcial statements.

ASC 855 provides general standards governing ad¢itmufor and disclosure of events that occur afterbalance sheet date through
the date of issuance of the consolidated finarst&ements. ASC 855 also provides guidance opdhied after the balance sheet date during
which management of a reporting entity should eat&l@vents or transactions that may occur for piadeecognition or disclosure in the
financial statements, the circumstances under wéniclntity should recognize events or transacti@esirring after the balance sheet date in
its financial statements and the disclosures thardity should make about events or transactionaroing after the balance sheet date. The
Company adopted this ASC effective June 30, 2008 aaloption had no impact on the Company’s cona@itifinancial statements.

In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-09 asnaendment to ASC 855. This update eliminateddhjairement to provide a
specific date through which subsequent events esmkiated. The purpose of this update was toiateeypotential conflicts between ASC
855 and SEC reporting requirements. The updateeffastive upon issuance. The Company evaluatbgesjuent events through date of
issuance of this Quarterly Report on Form 10Q.
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Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In February 2008, FASB issued guidance addresshregher transactions where assets purchased frartiaytar counterparty and
financed through a repurchase agreement with tine saunterparty can be considered and accountexs feeparate transactions, or are
required to be considered “linked” transactions ar&y be considered derivatives. This guidanceiregpurchases and subsequent financing
through repurchase agreements be considered linkeshctions unless all of the following conditiapply: (1) the initial purchase and the
use of repurchase agreements to finance the p@eimasot contractually contingent upon each o{{2@the repurchase financing entered
into between the parties provides full recoursthéotransferee and the repurchase price is fix@dhé financial assets are readily obtainable
in the market; and (4) the financial instrument #merepurchase agreement are not coterminous glidance was effective for the
Company on January 1, 2009 and the implementattbnat have a material impact on the consolidaiteaiicial statements of the Company.

On June 12, 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-16n@mndment update to the accounting standards gowgtingé transfer and
servicing of financial assets. This amendment temtithe existing standard and eliminated the canafep QSPE, clarified the surrendering
of control to effect sale treatment and modifiee financial components approach — limiting theuwinstances in which a financial asset or
portion thereof should be derecognized when thesfesior maintains continuing involvement. It definthe term “Participating
Interest”. Under this standard update, the transferor musigréze and initially measure at fair value all assibtained and liabilities incurr
as a result of a transfer, including any retaineddficial interest. Additionally, the amendmentuiegd enhanced disclosures regarding the
transferors risk associated with continuing invahemt in any transferred assets. The amendmenéffeaive beginning January 1,

2010. The Company has determined the amendmera haterial impact on the consolidated finandatesnents. See discussion under
Consolidation (ASC 810) above.

3. Mortgage-Backed Securities

The following tables present the Company’s avaéédbl-sale RMBS portfolio as of March 31, 2010 &etember 31, 2009, at fair
value. The RMBS portfolio is composed of Agencd aon-Agency RMBS collateralized by residential tyage loans. The Agency RMBS
are mortgage pass-through certificates, collatezdlmortgage obligations, or CMOs, and other mgegaacked securities representing
interests in or obligations backed by pools of age loans issued or guaranteed by the Federaéafilortgage Association, or Fannie
Mae, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporatiofrreddie Mac, and the Government National Mortgagsociation, or Ginnie
Mae. The nomAgency RMBS portfolio is not issued or guarantegd-bnnie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Ginnie Mae and isetfoee subject to ris
as to the repayment of principal, or credit ridlhe Company classifies its non-Agency RMBS intd@eand subordinated interests. Senior
interests in non-Agency RMBS are considered tortiéled to the first principal repayments in thpip-rata ownership interests. Securities
identified as Senior, non-retained have been catateld pursuant to the adoption of ASC 810. PlsaseNote 8 of these consolidated
financial statements for a detailed discussion.

Following is a table presenting the principal valueamortized premium, unamortized discount, gursealized gains, gross
unrealized losses, and fair value of the CompaRWHS portfolio by asset class.

March 31, 201(
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross

Principal Unamortized Unamortized  Unrealized Unrealized

Value Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,608,77. $ 102,26¢ $ (113,399 $ 33,000 $ (201,11)) $ 1,429,53
Subordinater 2,648,17! 2,52¢ (1,882,23) 223,04: (43,545 947,96:
Senior, no-retained 1,698,31! 7,73 (168,34() 108,53! (16%) 1,646,08!
Agency RMBS 1,482,47 51,09¢ - 25,94¢ (724) 1,558,79!
Total $ 743773 $ 163,62¢ $ (2,163,97) $ 390,52¢ $ (24555) $ 5,582,37
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December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross

Principal Unamortized Unamortized  Unrealized Unrealized

Value Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 2,757,21 $ 153t $ (628,209 $ 83,94¢ $ (192,079 $ 2,022,40
Subordinater 1,616,03. 10,34¢ (1,239,769 65,99¢ (76,145 376,45¢
Agency RMBS 1,616,45 55,08 (29 20,761 (2,240 1,690,02!
Total $ 5,989,69 % 66,96: $ (1,868,00) $ 170,70¢ $ (270,469) $ 4,088,89

The following tables present the gross unrealinadds and estimated fair value of the Company’s RMBlength of time that such
securities have been in a continuous unrealizesigosition at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 200® securities in an unrealized loss
position have been evaluated by the Company forl@§Tiscussed in the paragraphs following thesiesa All of the unrealized loss rela
to the non-Agency senior RMBS securities that Haeen in a continuous unrealized loss position grehaan twelve months is related to
seven securities held in the portfolio since ptioMarch 31, 2008. These seven securities areeirfig in line with the Company’s
expectations at the time of their purchase, hapeeted future cash flows in excess of their amexdtizost, but have suffered significant
market value declines consistent with similar asketses as a result of the credit crisis.

March 31, 201(
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position Fc

Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Estimated Estimated
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
RMBS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 520,52: % (49,779 3 419,05 $ (151,339 $ 939,57¢ $ (201,11)
Subordinatec 143,24 (19,700 20,23¢ (23,84%) 163,47¢ (43,545
Senior, no-retained 9,601 (16%) - - 9,601 (16%)
Agency 165,63! (724 - - 165,63! (724
Total $ 838,99¢ $ (70,367 $ 439,29 $ (175,18) $ 1,278,29. $ (245,55)
December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position Fc
Less than 12 Montt 12 Months or More Total
Estimated Estimated Estimated
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
RMBS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 539,57¢ $ (38,466 $ 489,67( $ (153,61) $ 1,029,24¢ $ (192,079
Subordinatec 179,22¢ (72,43 5,862 (3,707 185,08¢ (76,145
Agency 682,68: (2,240 - - 682,68: (2,240
Total $ 1,401,48 $ (113,149 $ 49553. $ (157,320 $ 1,897,011 $ (270,469
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The Company recorded a $2.5 million other-than-terary credit impairment during the quarter endingrth 31, 2010 on
investments where the expected future cash floveed&in non-Agency RMBS were less than their aimedtcost basis. The Company
evaluates each investment in its RMBS portfolio@arT| quarterly or more often if market conditiowarrant. The amortized cost of each
investment in an unrealized loss position is coragdo the present value of expected future castsflaf the position. In estimating future
cash flows, the Company evaluated the non-AgencBRNbr other-than-temporary impairment by consiagiielinquencies, credit losses,
loss severities, prepayment speeds, geographicla@tawer characteristics, loan to value ratiesisening and credit support in conjunction
with broader macroeconomic expectations such aelprine depreciation, expectations of future delargcies and loss severities and the
ability of the borrow to refinance or modify thédans. If after determining the expected futurghctiows of the position, the amortized cost
of the security is less than the present valuésafipected future cash flows, an other-than-teanparedit impairment has occurred. If the
Company does not intend to sell nor are more likien not required to sell the debt security piaoits anticipated recovery, the credit los:
any, is recognized in the statement of operatiahile the balance of impairment related to othetdes is recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income (“OCI"). If the Company irderto sell the debt security, or will be more likédan not required to sell the security
before its anticipated recovery, the full OTTIéxognized in the statement of operations. Thermétation cannot be overcome by
management judgment of the probability of collegtall cash flows previously projected. A summafyhe OTTI included in earnings for t
quarter ending March 31, 2010 and March 31, 20@®dsented below:

For the Quarter Endin

March 31, 201( March 31, 200¢
(dollars in thousand:

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 9,99 $ S
Additions:

Other-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 2,46% -

Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsne@n securities with

previously recognized ott-thar-temporary impairment 82 -
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 12,54C  $ -

The impairment recorded during the quarter endirsgdid 31, 2010 was related to seven securitiese ¢fithe seven securities are
subordinated securitized or re-securitized 10s witterlying collateral that had increasing prepaynspeeds which eroded the expected
future cash flows. One security recorded a sigaift increase in the severity of losses recordélderturrent period and as such the Comj
increased severity expectations over the life efgbcurity. The seventh security is nearing fo@giment of the principal balance and the
Company expects final settlement of the securityaee increased lossesn the quarter ending March 31, 2010, these séesitiecorded los
severities ranging from 38% to 82% Constant DefRalte, three month prepayments speeds between IRaBBR, 60+ day delinquencies
between 18% and 45% of the pool balance, despitadaveighted average FICO scores on the poolsdmtv692 and 735. There was no
impairment recorded for the quarter ending March28D9.

The Company’s investment guidelines place no @giris on the credit rating of the assets the Caomjmable to hold in its
portfolio. The portfolio is most heavily weightéal contain RMBS with credit risk. The Company cbes assets for the portfolio after
carefully evaluating each investment’s risk profile

December 31,

March 31, 201( 2009
AAA 40.85% 39.41%
AA 0.72% 0.7%%
A 0.0(% 0.55%
BBB 0.17% 1.0™%
BB 1.0(% 1.71%
B 1.05% 2.1¢%
Below B or not ratel 56.21% 54.271%
Total 100.0(% 100.0(%

The AAA rated assets in the RMBS portfolio are prachantly Agency RMBS. As the Company securitiaese-securitizes assets,
it expects the Below B or not rated percentagekamortfolio to increase as the Company typicadhains the subordinated tranches of these
types of transactions.

Actual maturities of mortgage-backed securitiesgarerally shorter than stated contractual magsritiActual maturities of the
Company’s RMBS are affected by the contractuaklivEthe underlying mortgages, periodic paymentgrioficipal and prepayments of
principal. The following tables summarize the Camgs RMBS at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2@@@rding to their estimated
weighted-average life classifications. The weigkawerage lives of the mortgaacked securities at March 31, 2010 and Decemhez(RIk
in the tables below are based on data provideditftralealer quotes, assuming constant prepaymesttathe balloon or reset date for each
security. The prepayment model considers curried yforward yield, steepness of the curve, curmartgage rates, mortgage rates of the
outstanding loan, loan age, margin and volatility.
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March 31, 201(
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than

one Greater than
Less than one year and less five
year than five year: years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 128,49¢ $ 576,58t $ 724,44 $ 1,429,53;
Subordinatec 1,41C 40,82t 905,72¢ 947,96
Senior, no-retained 153,63: 1,492,45. - 1,646,08!
Agency RMBS - 1,181,11. 377,68 1,558,79!
Total fair value $ 283,54. $ 3,290,970 $ 2,007,851 $ 5,582,37'
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 133,40¢ $ 570,85¢ % 893,37¢ % 1,597,64.
Subordinatec 1,58¢ 41,42: 725,45¢ 768,46t
Senior, no-retained 149,77 1,387,94. - 1,537,71!
Agency RMBS - 1,162,17. 371,40: 1,533,57
Total amortized cos $ 284,77 $ 3,162,38 $ 1,990,23i $ 5,437,39
December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than
one Greater than
Less than one  year and less five
year than five year: years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 20,53: % 1,520,80¢ $ 481,06¢ $ 2,022,40
Subordinatec 137 204,48: 171,84( 376,45¢
Agency RMBS - 1,690,02! - 1,690,02!
Total fair value $ 20,67C $ 341531 $ 652,900 $ 4,088,89
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 20,54¢ % 1,631,46. $ 478,53( $ 2,130,54i
Subordinatec 76 244,93 141,59 386,60
Agency RMBS - 1,671,50; - 1,671,50;
Total amortized cos $ 20,62 $ 3,547,900 $ 620,12: $ 4,188,64!

The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to cratik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit rigktigh its asset selection
process. The non-Agency RMBS portfolio is collatized by what the Company classifies as Alt-Atfiilsn mortgages. The Company
categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardless of whethe loans were originally described as “prinfaéhé behavior of the collateral when we
purchase the security more typically resemblesfAltFhe Company defines Alt-A collateral characttcis to be when the 60+ day
delinquency bucket of the pool is greater than 5% \@eighted average FICO scores are greater tHaatéarigination. At March 31, 2010,
98% of the non-Agency RMBS are Alt-A collateralt Becember 31, 2009, 89% of the non-Agency RMBSewidt-A collateral. The
investment securities contained in this portiothef portfolio have the following collateral charistics at March 31, 2010 and Decembe!
20009.

The table below presents origination year for then@any's portfolio of non-Agency RMBS at March 30,10:

Origination Year as a Percentage of

QOutstanding Principal Balani March 31, 201(
2005 8.2%
2006 36.8%
2007 52.1%
2008 1.€%
2009 1.2%

Total 100.(%
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December 31,

March 31, 201( 2009
Number of securities in portfoli 34¢€ 20¢
Weighted average maturity (yea 28.2 28.t
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 73.7% 73.8%
Weighted average FIC 716.2 715.7
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa 425.¢ 415.¢
Weighted average percentage owner occu 83.4% 82.8%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 60.7% 59.9%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 21.6% 12.2%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 57.4% CA 44.8%
FL 13.8% FL 17.3%
NY 6.7% NY 7.5%
NJ 3.9%MD 4.9%
MD 3.5% NJ 4.4%

On January 29, 2010, the Company transferred $tliodhkin principal value of its RMBS to the CSM@20-1R Trust in a re-
securitization transaction. This transaction veaorded as a “secured borrowing” pursuant to ASficEo860 and 810. In this transaction,
the Company financed through the transaction $2lll®n of AAA-rated fixed rate bonds to third ggiinvestors for net proceeds of $268.1
million. The Company has retained $391.9 millidriAdA-rated bonds, $1.0 billion in subordinated lbsrand the owner trust certificate, and
interest only bonds with a notional value of $1lilédn. The subordinated bonds and the owner tcestificate provide credit support to the
AAA-rated bonds. The bonds issued by the trustaliateralized by RMBS that were transferred ® @SMC 2010-1R Trust. The assets
classified as non-agency MBS under the subhead@egitr, non-retained” in the Company's consolidéitezhcial statements were financed
by selling AAA-rated bonds to third parties. Thability related to the financing is reflected etCompany's consolidated financial
statements as “Securitized debt, non-retainedcute borrowings under GAAP do not reflect a gaifoss on the sale of the bonds over
their cost basis but rather amortize or accretg#ies over the life of the bonds. The Companyrtmasontinuing involvement with the
transferred assets except for its right to recpiigcipal and interest cash flows from the bondsa# retained.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2010, the Compatd RMBS with a carrying value of $89.6 milliéor net realized gains of
$342 thousand. Of the four securities sold dutiregquarter, two of the securities had realizedden the sale amounting to $1.8
million. These sales were effected for opportunistpositioning of the portfolio into higher yiéhd) assets. During the quarter ended
December 31, 2009, the Company sold RMBS with eyiray value of $213.0 million for realized gainsagproximately $16.2 million.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The following table represents the Company’s séized residential mortgage loans classified as faléhvestment at March 31,
2010 and December 31, 2009. At March 31, 2010rcqipately 56% of the Company’s securitized loaresadjustable rate mortgage loans
and 44% are fixed rate mortgage loans. All ofatpistable rate loans held for investment are byddjustable rate mortgages
(“ARMs"). Hybrid ARMs are mortgages that have interest ritasare fixed for an initial period (typically #®, five, seven or ten years) ¢
thereafter reset at regular intervals subject teré@st rate caps. The periodic cap on all hybfRM& in the securitized loan portfolio range
from 0.00% to 3.00% for the quarters ended Marg2810 and December 31, 2009. The securitizedslbafd for investment are carried at
their principal balance outstanding, plus premiwmdiscounts, less an allowance for loan losses:

December 31,
March 31, 201( 2009

(dollars in thousands

Securitized loans, at principal balar $ 44590: $ 475,08
Less: allowance for loan loss 4,55 4,551
Securitized loans held for investmt $ 44134 $ 470,53:
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The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizeddmyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 54% were originated during
2008 and 44% were originated during 2007. A sumgrmékey characteristics of these loans follows:

December 31,

March 31, 201( 2009
Number of loan: 63€ 681
Weighted average maturity (yea 27 27
Weighted average amortized loan to ve 73.5% 73.0%
Weighted average FIC 757 75€
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa 692.¢ 690.1
Weighted average percentage owner occu 90.5% 90.9%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 59.5% 60.0%
Weighted average geographic concentra CA 33.4% CA 33.8%
FL 6.7% FL 6.4%
IL 6.0% NJ 6.3%
NJ 6.0% IL 6.0%
VA 4.9% VA 4.8%

The following table summarizes the changes in tlesvance for loan losses for the securitized mag&gkan portfolio during the
quarters ended March 31, 2010 and December 31,2009

December 31,

March 31, 201( 2009
(dollars in thousand:
Balance, beginning of peric $ 4,551 $ 1,621
Provision for loan losse 60¢€ 3,101
Charge-offs (603 (177
Balance, end of peric $ 455 % 4,551

On a quarterly basis, the Company evaluates thguadg of its allowance for loan losses. The Corgjsaallowance for loan losses
at March 31, 2010 was $4.6 million, representing tésis points of the principal balance of the Canys securitized mortgage loan
portfolio. The Company’s allowance for loan losses $4.6 million at December 31, 2009, represgribil basis points of the principal
balance of the Company’s securitized loan portfokd March 31, 2010, 2.4% of the securitized lohekl for investment were greater than
60 days delinquent and 1.0% were in some stagerefibsure. At December 31, 2009, 1.82% of therstzzed loans held for investment
were greater than 60 days delinquent and 0.89% iwes@me stage of foreclosure.

5. Fair Value Measurements

GAAP defines fair value, establishes a frameworknfieasuring fair value, establishes a three-leaklation hierarchy for disclosure
of fair value measurement and enhances disclosargrements for fair value measurements. The vVialuaierarchy is based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asséability as of the measurement date. ThedHlewels are defined as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology aretgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imiglwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

The following discussion describes the methodokegidized by the Company to fair value its finalénstruments by instrument
class.

Short-term Instruments
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, atsopayable, and accrued inte
payable generally approximates estimated fair vdlieto the short term nature of these financstriiments.
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Nor-Agency and Agency RMBS

The Company determines the fair value of its inwestt securities utilizing a pricing model that inporates such factors as coupon,
prepayment speeds, weighted average life, collateraposition, borrower characteristics, expectedrest rates, life caps, periodic caps,
reset dates, collateral seasoning, expected lossgscted default severity, credit enhancemento#imel pertinent factors. Management
reviews the fair values generated by the modekterdhine whether prices are reflective of the aurnearket. Management performs a
validation of the fair value calculated by the pricmodel by comparing its results to independeiteg provided by dealers in the securities
and/or third party pricing services. The Compaaldves the observable inputs used in its modebijunction with dealer and/or third party
pricing services meets the criteria for classifmatas Level 2.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtktsy management to ensure the changes are agteopts markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain praslb@comes more transparent, the Company will woatio refine its valuation
methodologies. The methods used to produce adhiewcalculation may not be indicative of net izathle value or reflective of future fair
values. Furthermore, while the Company believegatgation methods are appropriate and consistéhtother market participants, the use
of different methodologies, or assumptions, to aeire the fair value of certain financial instrunteenould result in a different estimate of
fair value at the reporting date. The Company irgasts that are current as of the measurement @aieh may include periods of market
dislocation, during which price transparency maydmhiced.

Nor-Agency Non-Retained RMBS

The non-Agency, non-retained securities reflecteithé consolidated financial statements are séesigbnsolidated pursuant to the
Company'’s adoption of ASC 860 and ASC 810 on Janlia2010. These assets have been financed viithghrties without recourse to the
Company the normal course of the Company’s podfofitimization strategy. The Company classifiesthassets as Level 3 as the fair
valuation of these securities is not based on bbb inputs. The Company fair values these assé¢te actual sale price obtained in the
financing of the debt to the third party as anyrent or future appreciation or depreciation ofdlssets in not realizable by the
Company. Please see Note 8 to these consolidatattfal statements for a detailed discussion e$gtsecurities.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time, the observability of priaed inputs can be reduced for
certain instruments. If dealers or independertipgiservices are unable to provide a price foasset, or if the price provided by them is
deemed unreliable by the Company, then the asfidiewalued at its fair value as determined indjéaith by the Company. In addition,
validating third party pricing for the Company’ss@stments may be more subjective as fewer partitspaay be willing to provide this
service to the Company. llliquid investments tyllic experience greater price volatility as a reathrket does not exist. As fair value is not
an entity specific measure and is a market baspebaph which considers the value of an asset bilitiafrom the perspective of a market
participant, observability of prices and inputs @any significantly from period to period. A cotidh such as this can cause instruments !
reclassified from Level 1 to Level 2 or Level 2ltevel 3 when the Company is unable to obtain thady pricing verification.

If at the valuation date, the fair value of an istveent security is less than its amortized co#tetlate of the consolidated statement
of financial condition, the Company analyzes theestment security for OTTI. Management evaludtesGompany’s RMBS for OTTI at
least on a quarterly basis, and more frequentlywdmnomic or market concerns warrant such evaluatConsideration is given to (1) the
length of time and the extent to which the fairnahas been lower than carrying value, (2) thentrdéthe Company to sell the investment
prior to recovery in fair value (3) whether the Gmany will be more likely than not be required tdl e investment before the expected
recovery, and (4) the expected future cash flonth@finvestment in relation to its amortized cddhrealized losses on assets that are
considered OTTI due to credit are recognized imiegs and the cost basis of the assets are adjusted
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At March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Compas classified a portion of its assets as “L&Velnd a portion as “Level
3.” The Company’s financial assets carried atWalue on a recurring basis are valued at Marct2810 and December 31, 2009 as follows:

March 31, 201(

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 1,42953 $ -
Subordinate( - 947,96! -
Senior, no-retained - - 1,646,08
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 1,558,79! -
December 31, 20C
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 202240 % -
Subordinatet - 376,45¢ -
Senior, no-retained - - -
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 1,690,02! -

The table below presents a reconciliation of changessets classified as Level 3 in the Comparyrsolidated financial
statements. All of the assets classified as L&\ of the period ended March 31, 2010 have béeéedato this classification with the
adoption of ASC 860 and ASC 810 as of January 102® discussion of the method of fair valuinggbeassets is included aboveNian-
Agency No-Retained RMBS Unrealized gains on the assets are includethier@omprehensive income.

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
(dollars in thousand:

March 31, 201(

Non-Agency RMBS
Senior, no-retained

Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ =
Transfers in to Level 1,537,71!
Total unrealized gains included in O 108,37(
Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 1,646,08!

As of the quarters ended March 31, 2010 and DeceB81he€009, the Company was able to obtain thirtygaricing verification for
all assets classified as Level 2. In the aggregia¢eCompany’s fair valuation of RMBS investmentsye 0.76% higher than the aggregated
dealer marks for the quarter ended March 31, 20801205% lower than the aggregated dealer markhéoquarter ended December 31,
20009.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company records securitized loans held forstnaent when it securitizes loan and records theséetion as a “financing.” The
Company carries securitized loans held for inveatragprincipal value, plus premiums or discourgiglpless an allowance for loan
losses. The Company fair values its securitizaddaheld for investment by estimating future cémivs of the underlying assets. The
Company models each underlying asset by consideaingng other items, the structure of the undeglg@curity, coupon, servicer, actual
and expected defaults, actual and expected defawdtrities, reset indices, and prepayment speatmjanction with market research for
similar collateral performance and management'etgtions of general economic conditions in théaseand greater economy.

Repurchase Agreemet

The Company records repurchase agreements attirgiactual amounts including accrued interest bl@yaRepurchase agreeme
are collateralized financing transactions utilibyothe Company to acquire investment securitiege @ the short term nature of these
financial instruments, the Company estimated tirevedue of these repurchase agreements to beotiteactual obligation plus accrued
interest payable at maturity.
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Securitized Debt

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compasecuritization or re-
securitization transactions treated as “financiqgg’suant to ASC 860. The Company carries sezeadtdebt at the principal balance
outstanding on noretained notes associated with its securitizedddeatd for investment plus premiums or discountsnmeed with the sale
the notes to third parties. The premiums or dist®associated with the sale of the notes or @&téds are amortized over the life of the
instrument. The Company estimates the fair vafiseouritized debt by estimating the future casWw§ associated with underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Chmpany models each underlying asset by consideaingng other items, the structure of
the underlying security, coupon, servicer, actmal expected defaults, actual and expected defawdtrdies, reset indices, and prepayment
speeds in conjunction with market research forlsintiollateral performance and management’s expentaof general economic conditions
in the sector and greater economy.

The following table presents the carrying value astimated fair value, as described above, of tragany’s financial instruments
at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009:

March 31, 201( December 31, 200
Carrying Estimated Fa Carrying Estimated Fa
Amount Value Amount Value
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS $ 4,02358 $ 4,02358 $ 2,39886 $ 2,398,386
Agency RMBS 1,558,79! 1,558,79! 1,690,022 1,690,02!
Securitized loans held for investme 441,34 419,79: 470,53 453,38t
Repurchase agreemel 1,686,23 1,876,39. 1,975,40: 1,977,66.
Securitized dek 364,66 381,83: 390,35( 408,40:
Securitized debt, n-retained 1,636,43 1,638,37. - -

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.7 billion and $#li@b of repurchase agreements with weighted ayefaorrowing rates of 0.4¢
and 0.60% and weighted average remaining matudfie8 and 26 days as of March 31, 2010 and DeceBhe2009, respectively. At
March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, RMBS pledgezbllateral under these repurchase agreementmhestimated fair value of $1.9
billion and $2.0 billion, respectively. The inést rates of these repurchase agreements are ljeimetexed to the one-month LIBOR rate
and re-price accordingly.

At March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the rdmase agreements collateralized by RMBS had theviollg remaining maturities:

December 31,

March 31, 201( 2009
(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ 203,61¢ $ -
1-30 days (1. 1,278,67. 1,772,66.
30 to 59 day: 140,49’ 62,24
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 63,45: 140,49
Total $ 1,686,23 $ 1,975,40:

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates totadedi7.4 million and $259.0 million for the quartersded March 31, 2010 a
December 31, 2009, respective

At March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Comgahnot have an amount at risk greater than 10%s equity with any
counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateradl by residential mortgage loans or residentiaitgage-backed securities. For
financial reporting purposes, the Company’s seizedtdebt is accounted for as a financing. Thusyrésidential mortgage loans or RMBS
held as collateral are recorded in the assetseo€timpany as securitized loans held for investmeRMBS and the securitized debt is
recorded as a liability in the statements of finahcondition.
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At March 31, 2010, the Company’s securitized deliateralized by residential mortgage loans hadrecipal balance of $381.8
million. The debt matures between the years 20t52838. At March 31, 2010, the debt carried agiveid average cost of financing equal
to 5.56%, that is secured by residential mortgagas of which approximately 44% of the remaininiggpal balance pays a fixed rate of
6.33% and 56% of the remaining principal balangesgavariable rate of 5.60%. At December 31, 2809 Company’s securitized debt
collateralized by residential mortgage loans hadrcipal balance of $390.4 million. At Decembdr, 2009, the debt carried a weighted
average cost of financing equal to 5.50%, thaétsiged by residential mortgage loans of which axiprately 43% of the remaining principal
balance pays a fixed rate of 6.33% and 57% oféh@aining principal balance pays a variable rate.68%.

At March 31, 2010, the Company’s securitized deliiateralized by RMBS has a principal balance aff$illion. The debt matures
between the years 2035and 2047. At March 31, 20&0debt carried a weighted average cost of fimgnequal to 5.92%. At December 31,
2009 the Company did not have securitized debatmtlized by RMBS.

The following table presents the estimated prindippayment schedule of the securitized debt hglithe Company outstanding at
March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, based orctxpeash flows of the loans collateralizing thbtde

December 31,

March 31, 201( 2009
(dollars in thousands
Within One Yeal $ 858,12 $ 37,19:
One to Three Yeal 1,255,60: 70,88t
Three to Five Year 514,61 59,38:
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 1,540,06! 240,94!
Total $ 4,168,40! $ 408,40:

The significant debt reflected above reflects tloenPany’s adoption of ASC 810 on January 1, 201leade see Note 8 for a more
detailed discussion.

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt aneesielent upon cash flows received from the undegligans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentse underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experiencedisébee Note 4 for a more detailed discussidredbains collateralizing the securitized
debt.

8. Consolidation

In June 2009, the FASB issued two new accountiadstrds that amended guidance applicable to ttriating for transfers of
financial assets and the consolidation of VIE's (AS60 and ASC 810, respectively). The primarycifté these standards was to eliminate
the concept of a QPSE when transferring assetsoarnove the exemption of a QSPE when applyingtimsolidation standard. The
Company adopted these new accounting standardsJaswary 1, 2010.

The Company uses securitization trusts or varisléest entities in our securities issuance pcésior to January 1, 2010, these
variable interest entities met the definition of RESs and as such, were not subject to consolidatitffective January 1, 2010, all such
variable interest entities must be considered dmsolidation based on the criteria in ASC 810.

Per ASC 810, an entity shall consolidate a VIE wtiext entity has a variable interest that provithesreporting entity with a
controlling financial interest. The assessmerthefcharacteristics of the reporting entity’s Viah consider the VIE's purpose and
design. A controlling financial interest is defihas (a) the power to direct the activities of & hat most significantly impact the VIE's
economic performance and (b) the obligation to dbfasses of the VIE that could potentially be #igant to the VIE or the right to receive
benefits from the VIE that could potentially bersficant to the VIE.
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Since the Company'’s inception, there have beemssseuritization trust VIE's commenced for the mpap of securitizing whole
mortgage loans or re-securitizing MBS and obtaiterg financing. The Company evaluated its inteiregfach securitization trust VIE to
determine our primary beneficiary status. The Canydfound that five trusts, one of which had beamsolidated since its inception, met the
requirements of consolidation. The Company founad in five of the seven securitizations, baseth@ding all of the subordinate interests, it
maintains the obligation to absorb losses andfritiht to receive benefits that could be signiitc@ the VIE. In addition, the Company had
the power to direct activities of the trust or vdegermined to have the ability to control the tris¢ to our contribution in the purpose and
design of the structure. The remaining two trestsluated did not meet the requirements to corstalidue to the inability to control one of
the trusts and the lack of obligation to absorlsésson the remaining trust.

VIE's for which we are the Primary Beneficiary

Based on our consolidation evaluation, the Compeasyconsolidated three VIE's as of January 1, 20dDwere not previously
consolidated. Our retained beneficial interesinimimally, the subordinate tranche of these raistizations. In some cases we hold interests
in additional tranches. As of January 1, 2010haee consolidated these trusts and recognizedstegsaand liabilities at their carrying
value. The effect in the current quarter is thausion of assets of $1.6 billion of non-Agency tgage-backed securities at fair value no
longer retained by the Company, the inclusion inliabilities of $1.6 billion of non-recourse setitized debt associated with these mortgage-
backed securities and the de-recognition of gamsates of bonds during 2009 associated with rarg&ations. These accounting changes
had no economic effect on us.

On an ongoing basis, our retained beneficial istsrevill be fair valued as Level 2 assets. Thesobdated third-party owned
interests will be fair valued as Level 3 assetagitihe sale price as fair value. This is due éf#itt that we have no control over the third-
party interests and will not receive any futureuealrom them. Line items pertaining to the thiaty owned interests are separately stated
within our consolidated financial statements artlad as “Non-Retained”.

The trusts are structured as pass through ertitéseceive principal and interest on the undegd\dollateral and distribute those
payments to the certificate holders. The assetotrat instruments held by the securitization &ttiare restricted and can only be used to
fulfill the obligations of the securitization entit Additionally, the obligations of the securitiimn entities do not have any recourse to the
general credit of any other consolidated subsigg&amor to Chimera as the primary beneficiary. Thenpany’s risks associated with its
involvement with these VIE's is limited to its risland rights as a certificate holder of the bohtas retained.

The securitization entities newly consolidated oy Company are similar in nature to the portfosmavhole. The securitization
entities are all composed of RMBS of the qualitd gharacteristics of assets reflected in the RMBSsifications found in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. Please see Nfmea discussion of the securities charactessdf the portfolio.
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The table below presents the assets and liabibfiesnsolidated entities as of January 1, 2010:

Carrying Value (1

(dollars in
thousands
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior, no-retainec $ 1,114,03.
Liabilities
Securitized debt, ne-retainec 1,202,22.
Net assets and liabilities of newly consolidatetities (88,187)
Cumulative effect adjustment to retained earningsnuadoptior $ (88,18

(1) Carrying value represents the amount the assmifd have been recorded at in the consolidatezhfiial statements at
January 1, 2010 had they been recorded in the tdatea financial statements on the date the Comfiest met the
conditions for consolidatior

The cumulative effect of adopting ASC 810 on Japdar010 on a based on the shares outstandingaddate was to reduce the
beginning book value of the Company by $0.13 paresh

The table below reflects the assets and liabilige®rded in the consolidated statements of firdeindition related to the newly
consolidated securitization entities for the pegodied March 31, 2010.

March 31, 201(

(dollars in
thousands
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior, no-retained $ 1,646,08
Liabilities
Securitized debt, n-retained $ 1,636,43

The consolidation of these securitization entitieseases both the recorded assets and liabitifidse Company. The assets of the
trust associated with each securitization entity @aly be used to settle the obligations of easpeetive trust. In addition, the securitization

entities consolidated have no recourse to the tcoédne Company. Please see Note 5 for a dissugdithe fair value measurement of the
assets and liabilities.

The consolidation of these securitization entitieseases both the income and expense recordéd itonsolidated statement of
operations for the Company as detailed in the thblew.

For the Quarter

Ended
March 31, 201(
(dollars in
thousands
Interest income, ne-retained $ 50,86:
Interest expense, n-retainec 33,83(
Net interest income, n-retained $ 17,03:

A discussion of the significant accounting polictidshe Company to record income and expense Isded in Note 2 to these
consolidated financial statements. The effectduiping ASC 810 based on the weighted average sbaitetanding was to increase the net
interest income of the Company by approximatelY$qer share in the quarter ending March 31, 2010.

The consolidation of these securitization entitieseases the cash flows recorded with respettet@dmpanies financing activities
as detailed in the table below.
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For the Quarter

Ended
March 31, 201(

(dollars in

thousands
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings,-retained $ 498,72(
Payments on securitized debt borrowings,-retained (84,639
Increase in accrued interest receive (7,84))
Increase in accrued interest paye 8,142
Net cash flows, nc-retainec $ 414,38

VIE’s for which we are not the Primary Beneficiary
The table below represents the carrying amountsksgdification of assets recorded on our cons@difinancial statements related
to our variable interests in non-consolidated VJE&s well as our maximum exposure to loss as dtrefsour involvement with these VIE's.

March 31, 201( December 31, 20C
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:
Assets
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - % 4799¢ $ 46,047
Subordinatec 9,50¢ 8,572 9,701 7,081
Agency RMBS 4,29 4,97¢ 4,73( 4,72
Total $ 13,80 $ 13,55( $ 62,42¢ $ 57,84¢

Our involvement with VIE's for which we are not themary beneficiary generally are in the form afghasing an investment in
these entities. Our maximum exposure to lossasdlentities is represented by the fair value eddhassets. This amount does not include
OTTI or other write-downs that we previously recizga through earnings.

9. Common Stock

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedidedid reinvestment and share purchase plan (‘DRSPmPe DRSPP
provides holders of record of our common stock gypostunity to automatically reinvest all or a portiof their cash distributions received on
common stock in additional shares of our commooksas well as to make optional cash payments tohase shares of our common stock.
Persons who are not already stockholders may alsdhase our common stock under the plan througbrdtcash payments. The DRSPP
is administered by the Administrator, The Bank @WNYork Mellon. To date, no shares have been ésueer the DRSPP.

On March 31, 2010 the Company announced the s&b,000,000 shares of common stock at $3.61 pee sbaestimated procee
less the underwriters’ discount and offering expsnsf $306.7 million. In addition, on April 1, PO, the underwriters exercised the option to
purchase up to an additional 12,750,000 sharesrofron stock to cover over-allotments for procetsts the underwriters’ discount, of
approximately $46.0 million. This sale was complede April 7, 2010. In all, the Company raised pietceeds of approximately $352.7
million in these offerings.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarangf March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2010, the Complaclared dividends to common shareholders taadiil3.8 million or $0.17
per share. During the quarter ended December(®19,2he Company declared dividends to common kbéters totaling $113.8 million or
$0.17 per share.
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10. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptaurgeto provide incentives to its independentcatoes and employees of
FIDAC and its affiliates, to stimulate their effetowards the Company’s continued success, lomg-geowth and profitability and to attract,
reward and retain personnel and other service geosi The incentive plan authorizes the Compeams@bmmittee of the board of directors
to grant awards, including incentive stock optiams-qualified stock options, restricted shares@thér types of incentive awards. The
specific award granted to an individual is basednyjin part, the individual’s position within FIDAGhe individual's position within the
Company, his or her contribution to the Compangg@mance, market practices, as well as the recamdiations of FIDAC. The incentive
plan authorizes the granting of options or othearals for an aggregate of the greater of 8.0% obthstanding shares of the Company’s
common stock up to a ceiling of 40,000,000 shares.

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrgttadk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 share$DAE’s employees and the
Company’s independent directors. The awards tintiependent directors vested on the date of gnadithe awards to FIDAC's employees
vest quarterly over a period of 10 years. Of ttedsmes, as of March 31, 2010, 302,025 sharesvessted and 22,540 shares were forfeite
cancelled.

On December 22, 2009, the Compensation Committeedas each independent director $45,000 in comnoak svhich vested on
December 31, 2009.

As of March 31, 2010, there was $17.7 million datainrecognized compensation cost related to rested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the lomgiteentive plan, based on closing price of therss on the grant date. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weigldedrage period of 7.8 years. The total fair valughares vested during the quarter ended Marc
2010 was $125,033, based on the closing priceeoétibck on the vesting date.

11. Income Taxes

As a REIT, the Company is not subject to Fedei@nne tax to the extent that it makes qualifyindritisitions to its stockholders,
and provided it satisfies on a continuing basigugh actual investment and operating resultsRIEBE requirements including certain asset,
income, distribution and stock ownership tests.sMitates recognize REIT status as well. Duriegiiarter ended March 31, 2010, the
Company recorded no income tax expense relate@dt and federal tax liabilities on undistributadame. During the quarter ended
December 31, 2009, the Company recorded no incarmexpense related to state and federal tax liggsilon undistributed income.

In general, common stock cash dividends declaretidyCompany will be considered ordinary incomsttwkholders for income ti
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitalsgai return of capital. For the quarters
ended March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the @oyrgstimates that all income distributed in thenfof dividends will be characteriz
as ordinary income.

12. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeglit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to credit risk and
interest rate risk in connection with its investrgein non-Agency residential mortgage loans anditeensitive mortgage-backed
securities. When the Company assumes credititiaempts to minimize interest rate risk throwagiset selection, hedging and matching the
income earned on mortgage assets with the costaitd liabilities. The Company is subject to iag rate risk, primarily in connection with
its investments in fixed-rate and adjustable-ratetgage-backed securities, residential mortgagesioand borrowings under repurchase
agreements. The Company attempts to minimize torislithrough due diligence and asset selectioploghasing loans underwritten to
agreed-upon specifications of selected originatditse Company has established a whole loan targekehincluding prime borrowers with
FICO scores generally greater than 650, Alt-A doentation, geographic diversification, owner-occdpieoperty, and moderate loan to
value ratio. These factors are considered to Ipoitant indicators of credit risk

13. Management Agreement and Related Party Transéons

The Company has entered into a management agreevitleritlDAC, which provides for an initial term #hmgh December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestitto certain termination rights. The CompanyspRIDAC a quarterly management fee
equal to 1.50% per annum of the gross Stockholdegsity (as defined in the management agreemerieo€ompany.
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Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for theetgrs ended March 31, 2010 and 2009 were $8libménd $2.6 million,
respectively.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC forcitsts incurred under the management agreemeiaiddition, the management
agreement permits FIDAC to require the Companyalpfpr its pro rata portion of rent, telephonelitigis, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegikases that FIDAC incurred in the operation of@lmenpany. These expenses are
allocated between FIDAC and the Company based®ratio of the Company’s proportion of gross assetapared to all remaining gross
assets managed by FIDAC as calculated at eachequend. FIDAC and the Company will modify thigoahtion methodology, subject to t
Company'’s board of directorapproval if the allocation becomes inequitable (ifehe Company becomes very highly leveraged maned tc
FIDAC's other funds and accounts). FIDAC has wdiits right to request reimbursement from the Camypat these expenses until such
time as it determines to rescind that waiver. @am®unt waived by FIDAC is not material to the cditsded financial statements.

During the quarters ended March 31, 2010 and Deeefih, 2009, 32,225 and 32,225 shares of restrgttazk issued by the
Company to FIDAC'’s employees vested, as discusséibie 10.

In April 2009, the Company entered into a Secwgitredustry and Financial Markets Association statigimeprinted form Master
Repurchase Agreement with RCAP Securities, Incaffiliate. This standard agreement does not ¢omtay sort of liquidity, net worth or
other similar types of positive or negative coveararRather, the agreement contains covenantsebaire the buyer and seller of securitie
deliver collateral or securities, and similar coaets which are customary in the form Master RepasetAgreement. As of March 31, 2010,
the Company was financing $147.4 million under Hgseement at a weighted average rate of 1.22%Cohgpany has been in compliance
with all covenants of this agreement since it exdénto this agreement.

In March 2008, the Company entered into a Secaritidustry and Financial Markets Association statig@eprinted form Master
Repurchase Agreement with Annaly. This standardeagent does not contain any sort of liquidity,wetth or other similar types of
positive or negative covenants. Rather, the ageeégontains covenants that require the buyer alher ©f securities to deliver collateral or
securities, and similar covenants which are custgrmathe form Master Repurchase Agreement. Atdfi&81, 2010, the Company had no
financing under this agreement. At December 3092¢he Company financed $259.0 million under #yseement at a weighted average rate
of 1.72%. The Company has been in compliance alitbovenants of this agreement since it entergaltinis agreement.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoiwedharious claims and legal actions arising indn@inary course of
business. Management is not aware of any reportedreported contingencies at March 31, 2010.

15. Subsequent Events

On April 30, the Company transferred $566.6 millinrprincipal value of its RMBS to the CSMC 2010RLTrust in a re-
securitization transaction. In this transactitie, Company term financed $138.8 million of AAA-mfiexed rate bonds financing without
recourse to the Company with third party invesforset proceeds of $137.4 million. The Compartgireed $427.8 million in subordinated
non-rated bonds and the owner trust certificatd,iaverse interest only bonds with a notional valti§566.8 million. The subordinated
bonds and the owner trust certificate provide ¢reaipport to the AAArated bonds. The bonds issued by the trust al@tedlized by RMB¢
that were transferred to the CSMC 2010-11R Tri$iis re-securitization will be consolidated pursuanASC 810.

On March 31, 2010 the Company announced the s&B,0600,000 shares of common stock at $3.61 pee $bhaestimated procee:
less the underwriters’ discount and offering expsnsf $306.7 million. In addition, on April 1, PO, the underwriters exercised the option to
purchase up to an additional 12,750,000 sharesrofrion stock to cover over-allotments for procetstss the underwriters’ discount, of
approximately $46.0 million. This sale was complede April 7, 2010. In all, the Company raised prestceeds of approximately $352.7
million in these offerings.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION:

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

We make forward-looking statements in this replaat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Theseard-looking statements
include information about possible or assumed &utesults of our business, financial conditionyiliity, results of operations, plans and
objectives. When we use the words “believe,” ‘fect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “c ontinue,” “intend,” “should,” “may,”
“would,” “will” or similar expressions, we inted to identify forward-looking statements. Statetseegarding the following subjects,
among others, are forward-looking by their nature:

« our business and investment strategy;

« our projected financial and operating results;

- our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts, obtain future financing arrangements andehmas of such arrangements;

« general volatility of the securities markets in ahive invest;

« the implementation, timing and impact of, and clenty, various government programs, including tBeDépartment of the
Treasury’s plan to buy Agency residential mortgageked securities, the Term Asset-Backed Secutitas Facility and the
Public-Private Investment Prograi

e our expected investments;

« changes in the value of our investments;

« interest rate mismatches between our mortgage-Hesd@urities and our borrowings used to fund suchhases;

« changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayrags; r

. effects of interest rate caps on our adjustablemairtgage-backed securities;

» rates of default or decreased recovery rates omwastments;

» prepayments of the mortgage and other loans uridgrbur mortgage-backed or other asset-backedisesur

« the degree to which our hedging strategies mayayr mot protect us from interest rate volatility;

« impact of and changes in governmental regulatislaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikiters;

« availability of investment opportunities in reatate-related and other securities;

« availability of qualified personnel;

» estimates relating to our ability to make distribn$ to our stockholders in the future;

« our understanding of our competition; and

« market trends in our industry, interest rates,diblet securities markets or the general economy.

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futuropeance, taking into account
all information currently available to us. You skunot place undue reliance on these forward-loglstatements. These beliefs, assumptions
and expectations can change as a result of mamsjbmevents or factors, not all of which are knadwmis. Some of these factors are
described under the caption “Risk Factors” in most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and angsgbent Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q. If a change occurs, our business, finargabition, liquidity and results of operations mayy materially from those expressed in our
forward-looking statements. Any forward-lookingtstaent speaks only as of the date on which it idenBlew risks and uncertainties arise

from time to time, and it is impossible for us tegict those events or how they may affect us.epkas required by law, we are not oblig:
to, and do not intend to, update or revise any &mdalooking statements, whether as a result ofinfavmation, future events or otherwise.
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Executive Summary

We are a specialty finance company that invedtiseedirectly or indirectly through our subsidiarjén residential mortgage-backed
securities, or RMBS, residential mortgage loanal, @state related securities and various othet akEsses. We are externally managed by
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company, which wieréo as FIDAC or our Manager. FIDAC is a fixaitdme investment management
company that is registered as an investment adwislethe Securities and Exchange Commission, d2.SEIDAC is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Annaly Capital Management, Inc., omaly. FIDAC has a broad range of experience inagang investments in Agency
RMBS, which are mortgage pass-through collaterdlinertgage obligations, or CMOs, and other mortgaameked securities representing
interests in or obligations backed by pools of mage loans issued or guaranteed by the Federadafilortgage Association, or Fannie
Mae, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporatioirreddie Mac, and the Government National Mortgaggociation, or Ginnie Mae,
non-Agency RMBS, debt obligations, or CDOs, anceptieal estate related investments, including magag@reXus Investment Corp., a
publicly traded REIT.

We have elected and intend to qualify to be tayed geal estate investment trust, or REIT, for feldacome tax purposes
commencing with our taxable year ending on DecerBtheP007. Our targeted asset classes and thegainnvestments we expect to make
in each are as follows:

« RMBS, consisting of:

0 Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and noresiment grade classes, including the BB-ratedtBdrand non-
rated classe

o Agency RMBS

« Whole mortgage loans, consisting of:
o Prime mortgage loar
o Jumbo prime mortgage loa
o Alt-A mortgage loan

« Asset Backed Securities, or ABS, consisting of:

o Commercial mortga¢-backed securities, or CME
o Debt and equity tranches of collateralized debigaitions, or CDO:

0 Consumer and non-consumer ABS, includingstment-grade and non-investment grade classeadingl the BB-rated, B-
rated and nc-rated classe

We completed our initial public offering on Novemlt2d, 2007. In that offering and in a concurremgte offering we raised net
proceeds of approximately $533.6 million. We coetedl a second public offering and second privé&riafy on October 29, 2008. In these
offerings we raised net proceeds of approximat81$0 million. During the second quarter 2009,completed a third public offering and
third private offering on April 21, 2009, and a fdupublic offering and fourth private offering &8, 2009. In these offerings, we raised net
proceeds of approximately $850.9 million and $618idion. We completed a fifth public offering Api7, 2010. In this offering we raised
net proceeds of approximately $352.7 million.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, jrifg through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We idtemachieve this objective by investing in a brekass of financial assets to construct an
investment portfolio that is designed to achietmative risk-adjusted returns and that is strieriuto comply with the various federal income
tax requirements for REIT status and to maintainesemption from the Investment Company Act of 13#0the 1940 Act.
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Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquinog-Agency RMBS and
on purchasing residential mortgage loans that baea originated by select high-quality originatamsjuding the retail lending operations of
leading commercial banks. Our investment portf@iaeighted toward non-Agency RMBS. At March 2@10, approximately 76% of our
investment portfolio was non-Agency RMBS, 15% of mvestment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and 9% of mvestment portfolio was
secured residential mortgage loans. At Decembg2@®19, approximately 68% of our investment poitfevas non-Agency RMBS, 25% of
our investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and 7%uof investment portfolio was secured residentiaitgage loans. We expect that over
the near term our investment portfolio will contnto be weighted toward RMBS, subject to maintgjronr REIT qualification and our 1940
Act exemption. In addition, we have engaged in dgending on market conditions, anticipate cotimigtio engage in transactions with
residential mortgage lending operations of leadimgymercial banks and other high-quality originaiarg/hich we identify and re-underwrite
residential mortgage loans owned by such entidierd,rather than purchasing and securitizing susideatial mortgage loans ourselves, we
and the originator would structure the securit@atind we would purchase the resulting mezzanidesahordinate non-Agency RMBS. We
may also engage in similar transactions with noe#ay RMBS in which we would acquire non-Agency RM&%®I re-securitize those
securities. We would sell some or all of the resglAAA-rated RMBS and may retain some of the Ad#&ted RMBS and other subordinate
bonds and interests.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We will
adjust our strategy to changing market conditionshifting our asset allocations across these varasset classes as interest rate and credit
cycles change over time. We believe that ouresgsgtcombined with FIDAG experience, will enable us to pay dividends aitdexe capite
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. efiect to take a long-term view of assets andliligls, and our reported earnings and
mark-to-market valuations at the end of a finanelorting period will not significantly impact oabjective of providing attractive risk-
adjusted returns to our stockholders over the kemngp.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potegtialns and to fund the acquisition of our assétsr income is generated primarily
by the difference, or net spread, between the ircam earn on our assets and the cost of our bargswiWe expect to finance our
investments using a variety of financing sourcetuiting, when available, repurchase agreementsheaise facilities, securitizations,
commercial paper and term financing CDOs. We mapage our debt by utilizing interest rate hedgash sis interest rate swaps, to reduce
the effect of interest rate fluctuations relatedtio debt.

Recent Developments

We commenced operations in November 2007 in thetaidchallenging market conditions which affectieel cost and availability
of financing from the facilities with which we exgted to finance our investments. These instrumentsded repurchase agreements,
warehouse facilities, securitizations, asset-baddedmercial paper, or ABCP, and term CDOs. Theidiidy crisis which commenced in
August 2007 affected each of these sources—anditii#vidual providers—to different degrees; somearges generally became unavailable,
some remained available but at a high cost, anaseene largely unaffected. For example, in theirelpase agreement market, non-Agency
RMBS became harder to finance, depending on the ayjassets collateralizing the RMBS. The amaentn and margin requirements
associated with these types of financings wereiaipacted. At that time, warehouse facilitiesitmhce whole loan prime residential
mortgages were generally available from major bablsat significantly higher cost and had greateargin requirements than previously
offered. It was also extremely difficult to termdnce whole loans through securitization or bdeslsed by a CDO structure. Financing
using ABCP froze as issuers became unable to ptagell) their securities, which resulted, in somstances, in forced sales of mortgage-
backed securities, or MBS, and other securitieckhirther negatively impacted the market valutheke assets.

Although the credit markets had been undergoingmtubulence, as we started ramping up our poatfoliate 2007, we noted a
slight easing. We entered into a number of remselagreements we could use to finance RMBS. nimaia 2008, we entered into two
whole mortgage loan repurchase agreements. Asgantto see the availability of financing, we wals seeing better underwriting
standards used to originate new mortgages. We emoed buying and financing RMBS and also enteredagreements to purchase whole
mortgage loans. We purchased high credit quadisgts which we believed we would be readily abfngnce.

Beginning in mid-February 2008, credit markets eipeed a dramatic and sudden adverse changeseleeity of the limitation on
liquidity was largely unanticipated by the market€redit once again froze, and in the mortgagekatavaluations of nomgency RMBS an
whole mortgage loans came under severe pressiis.credit crisis began in early February 2008, whdeavily leveraged investor
announced that it had to de-lever and liquidatertfgio of approximately $30 billion of non-Agen&®MBS. Prices of these types of
securities dropped dramatically, and lenders stdawering the prices on non-Agency RMBS that theld as collateral to secure the loans
they had extended. The subsequent failure in M20€I8 of Bear Stearns & Co. worsened the crisis.th& year progressed, deterioration in
the fair value of our assets continued, we recearetimet margin calls under our repurchase agreismehich resulted in our obtaining
additional funding from third parties, includingpfn Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”), dfileate, and taking other steps to
increase our liquidity.
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The challenges of the first half of 2008 have awndid through the first quarter of 2010, as finagdifficulties have severely
pressured liquidity and asset values. In Septe@®@8, Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc., a major gtreent bank, experienced a major
liquidity crisis and failed. Securities tradingmains limited and mortgage securities financingkats remain challenging as the industry
continues to report negative news. This dislocaiticthe non-Agency mortgage sector has madefitdif for us to obtain short-term
financing on favorable terms. As a result, weehewmpleted loan securitizations in order to obkaing-term financing and terminated our
un-utilized whole loan repurchase agreements irra@avoid paying non-usage fees under those mgmats. In addition, we have continued
to seek funding from Annaly and/or RCAP Securitles, Under these circumstances, we expect todatiens intended to protect our
liquidity, which may include reducing borrowingsdadisposing of assets as well as raising capital.

During this period of market dislocation, fiscabdamonetary policymakers have established new liufdcilities for primary
dealers and commercial banks, reduced short-telareist rates, and passed legislation that is ieidibal address the challenges of mortgage
borrowers and lenders. This legislation, the Hagisind Economic Recovery Act of 2008, seeks to falldsome foreclosures for distressed
borrowers and assist communities with foreclosuoblems.

Subsequent to June 30, 2008, there were increaadentoncerns about Freddie Mac and Fannie Médisyao withstand future
credit losses associated with securities heldeir ihvestment portfolios, and on which they pravglarantees, without the direct support of
the federal government. In September 2008 Fanmie &hd Freddie Mac were placed into the conseskatoof the Federal Housing Finar
Agency, or FHFA, their federal regulator, pursu@nits powers under The Federal Housing FinancaiRéary Reform Act of 2008, a part of
the Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008.thesconservator of Fannie Mae and Freddie Maci-Hi€A controls and directs the
operations of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and mptake over the assets of and operate Fannie Mh&m@adie Mac with all the powers of
the shareholders, the directors, and the officeFsaonie Mae and Freddie Mac and conduct all bssiné Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; (2)
collect all obligations and money due to Fannie Maé Freddie Mac; (3) perform all functions of FienMae and Freddie Mac which are
consistent with the conservator’'s appointmentp{éserve and conserve the assets and propertynoféd-slae and Freddie Mac; and (5)
contract for assistance in fulfilling any functiagtivity, action or duty of the conservator. Anpary focus of this new legislation is to
increase the availability of mortgage financingdilpwing Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac to continugrtow their guarantee business without
limit, while limiting net purchases of mortgage-kad securities to a modest amount through the €820Q9.

In addition to FHFA becoming the conservator of fiarMae and Freddie Mac, (i) the U.S. Departmerfreaisury and FHFA have
entered into preferred stock purchase agreemet&ée the U.S. Department of Treasury, or the Tigasnd Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
pursuant to which the Treasury will ensure thatezfd-annie Mae and Freddie Mac maintains a p@&sitt worth; (ii) the Treasury has
established a new secured lending credit facilityclv will be available to Fannie Mae, Freddie Maieg the Federal Home Loan Banks,
which is intended to serve as a liquidity backstepich was available through December 2009; aridtii¢ Treasury has initiated a tempor
program to purchase RMBS issued by Fannie Mae esblie Mac. Although the Treasury has committgatahto Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac, there can be no assurance that these actiifsevadequate for their needs. If these actiorsraadequate, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
could continue to suffer losses and could faildadr their guarantees and other obligations. Thaduroles of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac
could be significantly reduced and the nature efrtuarantees could be considerably diminished. éhanges to the nature of the guaran
provided by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac could redefihat constitutes Mortgage-Backed Securitiescantt have broad adverse market
implications.

Given the highly fluid and evolving nature of theseents, it is unclear how our business will beaotpd. Based upon the further
activity of the U.S. government or market respaiosgevelopments at Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, osinless could be adversely impacted.
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The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008EBSA, was enacted in October 2008. The EESAigesvthe U.S. Secretary
of the Treasury with the authority to establishraubled Asset Relief Program, or TARP, to purcHasm financial institutions up to $700
billion of equity or preferred securities, residahbr commercial mortgages and any securitiesgabbns, or other instruments that are based
on or related to such mortgages, that in eachwaseoriginated or issued on or before March 148288 well as any other financial
instrument that the U.S. Secretary of the Treasaftgr consultation with the Chairman of the Boafd@overnors of the Federal Reserve
System, determines the purchase of which is negessaromote financial market stability, upon tsarittal of such determination, in writir
to the appropriate committees of the U.S. Congré$e EESA also provides for a program that wollllhacompanies to insure their
troubled assets.

The U.S. Government, Federal Reserve and othergmental and regulatory bodies have taken or ameidering taking other
actions to address the financial crisis. The TAsset-Backed Securities Loan Facility, or TALF, viiast announced by the Treasury on
November 25, 2008, and has been expanded in sizecape since its initial announcement. UndeiMkkeF, the Federal Reserve Bank
New York, or the FRBNY, provides n-recourse loans to borrowers to fund their purclidigdigible assets. The FRBNY has stopped
accepting applications for credit under the TALBgram for all collateral except for newly issuednroercial mortgag&acked securities, fi
which it has extended the time period of accepaipglications to June 30, 2010.

In addition, on March 23, 2009, the U.S. Treasumgonjunction with the Federal Deposit Insurancgg@ration, or FDIC, and the
Federal Reserve, announced the establishment &fublkc-Private Investment Program, or PPIP. ThiPR®designed to encourage the
transfer of certain illiquid legacy real estatdated assets off of the balance sheets of fiahimgtitutions, restarting the market for thesse
and supporting the flow of credit and other cagitéd the broader economy.

Although these aggressive steps are intended teqirand support the US housing and mortgage masieetontinue to operate
under very difficult market conditions. As a rdstihere can be no assurance that the EESA, thePT&R TALF, PPIP or other policy
initiatives will have a beneficial impact on thedincial markets, including current extreme levélgatatility. We cannot predict whether or
when such actions may occur or what impact, if amgh actions could have on our business, resutiparations and financial condition.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be tteby various factors, many of which are beyondommtrol. Our results of
operations will primarily depend on, among othéndis, the level of our net interest income, theketavalue of our assets, and the supply of
and demand for such assets. Our net interest imcanich reflects the amortization of purchase puems and accretion of discounts, varies
primarily as a result of changes in interest ratesrowing costs, and prepayment speeds, whichrisasurement of how quickly borrowers
pay down the unpaid principal balance on their gage loans.

Prepayment SpeedBrepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constgmaiy#nent Rate, or CPR, vary according to interdesrdhe
type of investment, conditions in financial marketsmpetition and other factors, none of which barpredicted with any certainty. In
general, when interest rates rise, it is relativeds attractive for borrowers to refinance theirtgage loans, and as a result, prepayment
speeds tend to decrease. When interest rateprigfiayment speeds tend to increase. For mortgageahd RMBS investments purchased at
a premium, as prepayment speeds increase, the awfdnoome we earn decreases because the purpfes@im we paid for the bonds
amortizes faster than expected. Conversely, deesda prepayment speeds result in increased inaochean extend the period over which
we amortize the purchase premium. For mortgage doa@rRMBS investments purchased at a discountegmpment speeds increase, the
amount of income we earn increases because ottsdeaation of the accretion of the discount imi@iest income. Conversely, decreases in
prepayment speeds result in decreased income arektend the period over which we accrete the @msehliscount into interest income.

Rising Interest Rate Environme#s indicated above, as interest rates rise, prepayspeeds generally decrease. Rising interest
rates, however, increase our financing costs wimali result in a net negative impact on our netr@seincome. In addition, if we acquire
Agency and non-Agency RMBS collateralized by montielset adjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, arekthand five-year hybrid ARMs,
such interest rate increases could result in deessim our net investment income, as there coulltbming mismatch between the interest
reset dates on our RMBS portfolio and the finandaosts of these investments. We expect, howevat our fixed-rate assets would decline
in value in a rising interest rate environment #rat our net interest spreads on fixed rate asseisl decline in a rising interest rate
environment to the extent such assets are finawddloating rate debt.
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Falling Interest Rate Environmerfs interest rates fall, prepayment speeds gendraihgase. Falling interest rates, however,
decrease our financing costs which may resultrietgpositive impact on our net interest incomeaddition, if we acquire Agency and non-
Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly reset adjbktarate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- and fivarygbrid ARMs, such interest rate
decreases could result in increases in our nestmant income, as there could be a timing mismbétiveen the interest rate reset dates on
our RMBS portfolio and the financing costs of thasestments. We expect, however, that our fixad-assets would increase in value in a
falling interest rate environment and that ourintgrest spreads on fixed rate assets could inerieas falling interest rate environment to the
extent such assets are financed with floatingdets.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is acquiring assetshmae believe to be of high credit quality. Weibeé this strategy
will generally keep our credit losses and finanaingts low. We retain the risk of potential crédgses on all of the residential mortgage
loans we hold in our portfolio. Additionally, somé&our investments in RMBS may be qualifying im&tis for purposes of maintaining our
exemption from the 1940 Act because we retain &d0@nership interest in the underlying loans. & purchase all classes of these
securitizations, we have the credit exposure omuttaerlying loans. Prior to the purchase of treesmirities, we conduct a due diligence
process that allows us to remove loans that doneett our credit standards based on loan-to-valigsydorrowerstredit scores, income a
asset documentation and other criteria that webelio be important indications of credit risk.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as measunethb aggregate unpaid principal balance of our
mortgage loans and aggregate principal balanceriortgage related securities and the other assetsvn is also a key revenue
driver. Generally, as the size of our investmantfplio grows, the amount of interest income weeiige increases. The larger investment
portfolio, however, drives increased expenses amete additional interest expense to finance thielpase of our assets.

Since changes in interest rates may significarifgctour activities, our operating results dependarge part, upon our ability to
effectively manage interest rate risks and prepaymisks while maintaining our status as a REIT.

Current Environment. The current weakness in the broader mortgageetsadould adversely affect one or more of our gaen
lenders or any of our lenders and could cause on#ee of our potential lenders or any of our lesde be unwilling or unable to provide us
with financing or require us to post additionallatdral. In general, this could potentially ingeaur financing costs and reduce our liquidity
or require us to sell assets at an inopportune. tifie expect to use a number of sources to finaocénvestments, including repurchase
agreements, warehouse facilities, securitizatiasset-backed commercial paper and term CDOs. @urarket conditions have affected the
cost and availability of financing from each of $kesources and their individual providers to déferdegrees; some sources generally are
unavailable, some are available but at a high emst,some are largely unaffected. For exampltharrepurchase agreement market,
borrowers have been affected differently dependimghe type of security they are financing. NoreAgy RMBS have been harder to
finance, depending on the type of assets collatarglthe RMBS. The amount, term and margin rezpagnts associated with these types of
financings have been negatively impacted.

Currently, warehouse facilities to finance wholarigrime residential mortgages are generally availttom major banks, but at
significantly higher cost and have greater margouirements than previously offered. Many majorkdsahat offer warehouse facilities have
also reduced the amount of capital available to eetrants and consequently the size of those tiasilbffered now are smaller than those
previously available.

It is currently a challenging market to term finarvehole loans through securitization or bonds iddyea CDO structure. The higt
rated senior bonds in these securitizations and Gf@tures currently have liquidity, but at mucidev spreads than issues priced in recent
history. The junior subordinate tranches of theaectures currently have few buyers and currenketazonditions have forced issuers to
retain these lower rated bonds rather than saththe

Certain issuers of ABCP have been unable to placeo(]) their securities, which has resulted, am® instances, in forced sales of
MBS and other securities which has further negbtivepacted the market value of these assets. eltregket conditions are fluid and likely
to change over time. As a result, the executfaruo investment strategy may be dictated by thet and availability of financing from these
different sources.
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If one or more major market participants fails treswise experiences a major liquidity crisis, asuhe case for Bear Stearns & Co.
in March 2008, and Lehman Brothers Holdings IncS@ptember 2008, it could negatively impact theketability of all fixed income
securities and this could negatively impact theigalf the securities we acquire, thus reducingnetibook value. Furthermore, if many of
our potential lenders or any of our lenders areilling or unable to provide us with financing, weutd be forced to sell our securities or
residential mortgage loans at an inopportune timemprices are depressed.

As described above, there has been significantrgawent action in the capital markets. Howeverrdlean be no assurance that the
government’s actions with respect to Freddie Mat laannie Mae, the EESA, the TARP, the TALF, theFP&1 other policy initiatives will
have a beneficial impact on the financial markéts.the extent the market does not respond favptatithese actions, or these actions do not
function as intended, our business may not redtiwanticipated positive impact from them. In &iddi the U.S. Government, Federal
Reserve and other governmental and regulatory bddiee taken or are considering taking other astioraddress the financial crisis. We
cannot predict whether or when such actions mayromcwhat impact, if any, such actions could hameur business, results of operations
and financial condition.

In the current market, it may be difficult or impisle to obtain third party pricing on the investiteewe purchase. In addition,
validating third party pricing for our investmemigy be more subjective as fewer participants mayili@g to provide this service to
us. Moreover, the current market is more illigthieln in recent history for some of the investmevdspurchase. llliquid investments typic:
experience greater price volatility as a ready readoes not exist.  As volatility increases quidity decreases we may have greater
difficulty financing our investments which may néigaly impact our earnings and the execution ofiouestment strategy.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with accounting principles generatfigepted in the United States
America, or GAAP. These accounting principles mequire us to make some complex and subjectivesias and assessments. Our most
critical accounting policies will involve decisioasd assessments that could affect our reportedsaasd liabilities, as well as our reported
revenues and expenses. We believe that all afébisions and assessments upon which our consalifiatincial statements are based will
be reasonable at the time made and based upomigtion available to us at that time. At each ceraehd, we calculate estimated fair value
of the investment portfolio using a pricing mod®&le validate our pricing model by obtaining indeghent pricing on all of our assets and
performing a verification of those sources to ownadnternal estimate of fair value. The followiage our most critical accounting policies:

Sales and Securitizations

We periodically enter into transactions in which sedl financial assets, such as RMBS, mortgageslaa other assets. Gains and
losses on sales of assets are computed on thédispdntification method whereby we record a gainoss on the difference between the
carrying value of the asset and the proceeds fhensale. In addition, we may from time to timews#ize or re-securitize assets and sell
tranches in the newly securitized assets. Thassadctions may be recorded as either a sale ardskhés contributed to the securitization are
removed from the consolidated statements of firercindition and a gain or loss is recognized,soa éinancing whereby the assets
contributed to the securitization are not derecogphibut rather the liabilities issued by the se@ation are recorded to reflect the term
financing of the assets. In these securitizatansre-securitizations we sometimes retain or aeggnior or subordinated interests in the
securitized or re-securitized assets.
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Valuation of Investments

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclos@stablishes a framework for measuring fair value, establishes a three-level
valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair valueaserement and enhances disclosure requiremerf@ifonlue measurements. The valuation
hierarchy is based upon the transparency of injpufse valuation of an asset or liability as of theasurement date. The three levels are
defined as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imewguoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to overall fair value.

Non-Agency and Agency Mortgage-Backed Securitiesvafued using a pricing model. The MBS pricingdeldncorporates such
factors as coupons, prepayment speeds, spread Toehsury and swap curves, convexity, duratioripgie and life caps, and credit
enhancement. Management reviews the fair valuesrdmed by the pricing model and compares itslteso dealer quotes received on each
investment to validate the reasonableness of thmtians indicated by the pricing models. The deglotes incorporate common market
pricing methods, including a spread measuremethietd reasury curve or interest rate swap curveeasag underlying characteristics of the
particular security including coupon, periodic difiel caps, rate reset period, issuer, additionadlitrsupport and expected life of the security.

Although we utilize a pricing model to compute thé value of the securities in our portfolio, walidate our fair values by seeking
indications of fair value from thirgarty dealers and/or pricing services. The vaiitgldlf fair value among dealers and pricing sersican b¢
wide at this time as full liquidity for the non-Agey market has yet to return. In addition, theeefawer participants in the RMBS sector
available to fair value investments. In theraggte, our internal valuations of the securitieswhich we received dealer marks were 0.05%
lower than the aggregated dealer marks.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtkisy management to ensure the changes are ateopts markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain praslbecomes more transparent, we continue to refin@aluation methodologies. The
methods used by us may produce a fair value cdionlthat may not be indicative of net realizabddue or reflective of future fair values.
Furthermore, while we believe our valuation methadsappropriate and consistent with other mar&gigipants, the use of different
methodologies, or assumptions, to determine thiesédile of certain financial instruments could tegua different estimate of fair value at
the reporting date. We use inputs that are cuasmf the measurement date, which may includegeef market dislocation, during which
price transparency may be reduced. This condat@arid cause our financial instruments to be retflagdsfrom Level 2 to Level 3.

Other-than-Temporary Impairments

FASB issued new guidance to improve the presemtatial disclosure of other-than-temporary impairment OTTI, on debt and
equity securities. We analyze our ndgency RMBS portfolio as these investments fallemithis new guidance. The security is analyze«
credit loss (the difference between the presentevaf cash flows expected to be collected and mharzed cost basis). If we do not intent
sell nor are required to sell the debt securitgio its anticipated recovery, the credit losgnif, is recognized in the statement of earnings,
while the balance of impairment related to othetdes is recognized in Other Comprehensive Incam@QCI. If we intend to sell the debt
security, or will be required to sell the secubigfore its anticipated recovery, the full OTTI é&ognized in the statement of earnings. Other-
than-temporary impairment has occurred if thereldegs) an adverse change in future estimated aastafid its impact reflected in current
earnings. The determination cannot be overcommadiryagement judgment of the probability of collegtéal cash flows previously projected.
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Securitized Loans Held for Investment

Our securitized residential mortgage loans are cwmg of fixed-rate and variable-rate loans. Wechase pools of residential
mortgage loans through a select group of origisatdiortgage loans are designated as held for imes¥, recorded on trade date, and are
carried at their principal balance outstandingsgay premiums or discounts which are amortizeacoreted over the estimated life of the
loan, less allowances for loan losses.

Non-Agency and Agency Residential Mortgage-BackedeSurities

We invest in RMBS representing interests in oblayat backed by pools of mortgage loans and caoyelsecurities at fair value
estimated using a pricing model. Management revign@ fair values generated by the model to deterwhether prices are reflective of the
current market. Management performs a validatfahefair value calculated by the pricing modeldmmparing its results to independent
prices provided by dealers in the securities anitMod party pricing services. If dealers or indagent pricing services are unable to provi
price for an asset, or if the price provided bynthe deemed unreliable by FIDAC, then the assdtheilvalued at its fair value as determined
in good faith by FIDAC. In the current marketnigy be difficult or impossible to obtain third pagricing on certain of our investments. In
addition, validating third party pricing for ouniastments may be more subjective as fewer partitspaay be willing to provide this service
to us. Moreover, the current market is more iliiginan in recent history for some of the investtaeme own. llliquid investments typically
experience greater price volatility as a ready madoes not exist. As volatility increases or idity decreases, we may have greater
difficulty financing its investments which may néigaly impact its earnings and the execution ofritestment strategy.

Our investment securities are classified as eittagling investments, available-for-sale investmentseld-to-maturity investments.
We intend to hold our RMBS as available-for-sald as such may sell any of our RMBS as part of @eral management of our
portfolio. All assets classified as available-fade are reported at estimated fair value, witkealired gains and losses included in other
comprehensive income.

When the fair value of an available-for-sale sdgus less than its amortized cost for an extenuleribd or there is a significant
decline in value, we consider whether there is O the value of the security. If, based on owalgsis, a credit portion of OTTI exists, the
cost basis of the security is written down to thentcurrent fair value, and the unrealized loggaissferred from accumulated other
comprehensive loss as an immediate reduction oécuearnings (as if the loss had been realizé¢ldeperiod of OTTI). The determination
of OTTlI is a subjective process, and different jueaits and assumptions could affect the timing sf kealization.

We consider the following factors when determin®gT| for a security:
« the length of time and the extent to which the raaxkalue has been less than the amortized cost;
« the financial condition and near-term prospecthefissuer;
» the credit quality and cash flow performance ofgbeurity; and
« whether we will be more likely than not requiredstll the investment before the expected recovery.

The determination of OTTI is made at least quartet we determine an impairment to be other tteamporary we will realize a lo:
which will negatively impact current income.

RMBS transactions are recorded on the trade ddéalized gains and losses from sales of RMBS asrdned based on the
specific identification method and recorded asia ¢Jass) on sale of investments in the stateménperations. Accretion of discounts or
amortization of premiums on available-for-sale sities and mortgage loans is computed using thecttffe interest yield method and is
included as a component of interest income in thiement of operations.

Interest Income

Interest income on RMBS and loans held for investngrecognized over the life of the investmenhgshe effective interest
method. Income recognition is suspended for le@men, in the opinion of management, a full recowvarincome and principal becomes
doubtful. Income recognition is resumed when danlbecomes contractually current and performasdemonstrated to be resumed.
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Accounting For Derivative Financial Instruments andHedging Activities

Our policies permit us to enter into derivative trants, including interest rate swaps and intaistcaps, as a means of mitigating
our interest rate risk. We intend to use interatt derivative instruments to mitigate interest régk rather than to enhance returns. If we
hedge using interest rate swaps we account foe tlhetruments as free-standing derivatives. Adogly, they are carried at fair value with
realized and unrealized gains and losses recogimzeanings.

We recognize all derivatives as either assetsabiliies in the statement of financial conditiamdameasure those instruments at fair
value. Additionally, the fair value adjustmentsiaiifect either other comprehensive income in shot#lers’ equity until the hedged item is
recognized in earnings or net income depending loethrer the derivative instrument qualifies as agedidr accounting purposes and, if so,
the nature of the hedging activity.

The FASB issued additional guidance that attenpisprove the transparency of financial reportiggoboviding additional
information about how derivative and hedging atitigi affect an entity’s financial position, finaatperformance and cash flows. This
guidance requires the disclosure requirementsddvaltive instruments and hedging activities byuiggg enhanced disclosure about (1) how
and why an entity uses derivative instrumentsh@®y derivative instruments and related hedged it@rasiccounted for, and (3) how
derivative instruments and related hedged itenectathe entity’s financial position, financial peminance, and cash flows.

In the normal course of business, we may useiatyasf derivative financial instruments to econoally manage, or hedge, interest
rate risk. These derivative financial instrumentsstrbe effective in reducing our interest rate gsgosure in order to qualify for hedge
accounting. When the terms of an underlying tratisa@re modified, or when the underlying hedgeditteases to exist, all changes in the
fair value of the instrument are included in netime for each period until the derivative instrutmaatures or is settled. Any derivative
instrument used for risk management that does eet the hedging criteria is carried at fair valuthwhe changes in value included in net
income.

Derivatives will be used for economic hedging pwgmrather than speculation. We will rely on quotest from third parties to
determine fair values. If our hedging activitiesrbt achieve our desired results, our reportediregs may be adversely affected.

Allowance for Probable Credit Losses

We have established an allowance for loan lossadeatel that management believes is adequate loesad evaluation of known
and inherent probable losses related to our loatfiglio. The estimate is based on a variety ofdexincluding current economic conditions,
industry loss experience, the loan originator'slegperience, credit quality trends, loan portfalionposition, delinquency trends, national
and local economic trends, national unemploymet#,ddanges in housing appreciation or depreciaia whether specific geographic
areas where we have significant loan concentrato@&xperiencing adverse economic conditions @adtse such as natural disasters that
may affect the local economy or property valuesotdpurchase of the pools of loans, we obtainederritepresentations and warranties from
the sellers that we could be reimbursed for thaesalf the loan if the loan fails to meet the agrepdn origination standards. While we have
little history of its own to establish loan trendglinquency trends of the originators and theanirmarket conditions aid in determining the
allowance for loan losses. We also performed dligedce procedures on a sample of loans that teetiteria during the purchase
process. We have created an unallocated provisiqorobable loan losses estimated as a percenfabe remaining principal on the
loans. Management’s estimate is based on histaiqeerience of similarly underwritten pools.

When we determine it is probable that specific @otually due amounts are uncollectible, the am@iobnsidered
impaired. Where impairment is indicated, a vahmtivrite-off is measured based upon the excedseofdcorded investment over the net fair
value of the collateral, reduced by selling cogtsy deficiency between the carrying amount of ased and the net sales price of repossesse
collateral is charged to the allowance for loarséss
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Income Taxes

We have elected and intend to qualify to be taxed REIT. Therefore we will generally not be sabje corporate federal or state
income tax to the extent that we make qualifyingributions to our stockholders, and provided wesBaon a continuing basis, through
actual investment and operating results, the RE¢jirements including certain asset, income, tistion and stock ownership tests.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT, and do not qualffyr certain statutory relief provisions, we wik Isubject to federal, state and local
income taxes and may be precluded from qualifysig EIT for the subsequent four taxable yearsviolig the year in which we lost our
REIT qualification. Accordingly, our failure to glify as a REIT could have a material adverse ihpaur results of operations and
amounts available for distribution to our stockleskd

The dividends paid deduction of a REIT for qualifyidividends to its stockholders is computed usimgtaxable income as opposed
to net income reported on the consolidated findrstéiements. Taxable income, generally, willglifirom net income reported on the
consolidated financial statements because therdetation of taxable income is based on tax prowisiand not financial accounting
principles.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

General Principles

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (ASC 105)

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@or FASB issued The Accounting Standards Cattiic and the Hierarchy
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, or Caxdifion which revises the framework for selecting @lccounting principles to be used in
the preparation of financial statements that aesgmted in conformity with Generally Accepted Aatiing Principles or GAAP. The
objective of the Codification is to establish theIB Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC ass sburce of authoritative accounting
principles recognized by the FASB. Codificationsvedfective for us as of September 30, 2009. bptdg the Codification, all non-
grandfathered, non-SEC accounting literature ndtited in the Codification was superseded and dderar-authoritative. Codification
requires any references within our consolidatedrfaial statements be modified from FASB issues$&€A However, in accordance with the
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Notice tan€tituents (v 2.0), we do not reference specifitisas of the ASC but will use broad
topic references.

Our recent accounting pronouncementsosehas been formatted to reflect the same orgé#inizal structure as the ASC. Broad topic
references will be updated with pending conterthag are released.

Assets

Receivables (ASC 310)

In April, 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-18, whatdresses the effect of a loan modification whiraa is part of a pool
accounted for as a single asset. This updateiektlie treatment of a troubled debt restructuriflis guidance allows acquired assets, w
have evidence of credit deterioration upon acdaisiand common risk characteristics, to be accalfttein the aggregate as a pool. Upon
establishment of the pool, the pool becomes thedfriccounting. Any purchase discount is notcated to individual loans, thus all of the
loans in the pool accrete at a single pool ratedas cash flow projections for the pool. Likewigapairment analysis is performed on the
pool as a whole, not on individual loans. Modifioas to loans, even if those modifications aresidered troubled debt restructuring, do not
result in a loan being removed from the pool. Tiheatment is consistent with our current accoungiractices and therefore has no material
effect on our consolidated financial statements.
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Investments in Debt and Equity Securities (ASC 320)

New guidance was provided to make impairment guidanore operational and to improve the presentainohdisclosure of OTTI
on debt and equity securities, as well as benéfitiarests in securitized financial assets, imficial statements. This guidance was the result
of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or Sak#n-market study mandated under the EESA. THE'Srecommendation was to
“evaluate the need for modifications (or the eliatian) of current OTTI guidance to provide for armaniform system of impairment testing
standards for financial instruments.” The guidareases the OTTI evaluation methodology. PreMiptise analytical focus was on whether
the company had the “intent and ability to retéénimvestment in the debt security for a periotirog sufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in fair value.” Now the focus is on winatthe company (1) has the intent to sell thestment securities, (2) is more likely than
not to be required to sell the investment se@asitiefore recovery, or (3) does not expect to rerctne entire amortized cost basis of the
investment securities. Further, the security elyaed for credit loss, (the difference betweengtesent value of cash flows expected to be
collected and the amortized cost basis). The thesk, if any, is then recognized in the statenoémiperations, while the balance of
impairment related to other factors will be recagui in OCI. If the entity intends to sell the sgiyythey will be required to sell the security
before its anticipated recovery, or does not exfientcover the entire amortized cost basis os#wurity, the full OTTI will be recognized in
the statement of operations.

OTTI has occurred if there has been an adverseggeharfuture estimated cash flows and its impaft¢cted in current earnings. T
determination cannot be overcome by managemenirjadgof the probability of collecting all cash fleygreviously projected. The
objective of an OTTI analysis is to determine wieetlhis probable that the holder will realize sopwmgtion of the unrealized loss on an
impaired security. Factors to consider when assgésr OTTI includes information about past evertsrrent conditions, reasonable and
supportable forecasts, remaining payment termanéial condition of the issuer, expected defawvt#ije of underlying collateral, industry
analysis, sector credit rating, credit enhanceraard,financial condition of guarantor. Our non-Agg RMBS and Agency RMBS
investments fall under this guidance and as suehyilV assess each security for OTTI based on egéithfuture cash flows. This guidance
became effective for us on June 30, 2009.

Broad Transactions

Consolidation (ASC 810)

On January 1, 2009, FASB amended the guidance aangenon-controlling interests in consolidatedaficial statements. This
guidance requires classification of non-controllintgrests (previously referred to as “minorityeirgst”) as part of consolidated net income
and to include the accumulated amount of non-cdimganterests as part of stockholders’ equityurthRer, this guidance requires distinction
between equity amounts attributable to controllintgrest and amounts attributable to the noncdigpinterests — previously classified as
minority interest outside of stockholders’ equity. addition to these financial reporting chandk#s guidance provided for significant
changes in accounting related to non-controllingriests; specifically, increases and decreasesnitnatling financial interests in consolidated
subsidiaries are reported in equity similar tosteg stock transactions. If a change in ownershipasolidated subsidiary results in a loss of
control and deconsolidation, any retained ownersitgrests are re-measured with the gain or Igssrted in net earnings. For the quarter
ended March 31, 2010, we did not have any non-obimig interests.

Effective January 1, 2010, the consolidation stastsldave been amended by ASU 2009-17. This ameantdipdates the existing
standard and eliminates the exemption from conatitid of a Qualified Special Purpose Entity or QSHIBe update requires an enterprise to
perform an analysis to determine whether the eriggrg variable interest or interests give it ateolling financial interest in a variable
interest entity, or VIE. The analysis identifieg forimary beneficiary of a VIE as the enterprisa thas both: a) the power to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the eyisteconomic performance and b) the obligationliscab losses of the entity or the right to
receive benefits from the entity which could potaht be significant to the VIE. The update re@sienhanced disclosures to provide use
financial statements with more transparent inforomaébout an enterprises involvement in a VIE. Wdge determined we are the primary
beneficiary on a number of VIE's formed throughsesuritizations. We were required to consolidad#BS re-securitization transactions
previously recorded during the year ended Decer@be2009 as sales for GAAP beginning with the effecdate of this ASU. Consolidati
of these transactions altered the presentationeo€bdnsolidated financial statements by increasimghonAgency portfolio and increasing t
value of nonrecourse liabilities for which we have no contirmuimbligation. The consolidation has reversed iptesly recorded GAAP gair
on sales of assets related to the re-securitizatiodertaken in 2009. The reversal of this galhbei accreted over the remaining life of the
re-securitized assets. The adoption of this guiddras resulted in material changes to the formdcantent of our consolidated financial
statements, as well as enhanced disclosures. eRefes to the discussion in Note 8 to the conatdid financial statements.
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Effective January 1, 2010, FASB amended the cadedn standard with ASU 2010-10 which indefinjtellefers the effective date
of ASU 2009-17 for a reporting enterprises intene®ntities for which it is industry practice igsue financial statements in accordance with
investment company standards (ASC 946). Thisrdfis expected to most significantly affect reppay entities in the investment
management industry. This amendment has no effeotur consolidated financial statements.

Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815)

Effective January 1, 2009 and adopted prospectitieé/FASB issued additional guidance attemptinigifarove the transparency of
financial reporting by mandating the provision dfigional information about how derivative and hiedgactivities affect an entitg'financial
position, financial performance and cash flowsisTuidance changed the disclosure requirementidiavative instruments and hedging
activities by requiring enhanced disclosure abayhpw and why an entity uses derivative instrureef®) how derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for, and (3)derivative instruments and related hedged iterflezfin entity’s financial position,
financial performance, and cash flows. To adhethis guidance, qualitative disclosures aboutathjes and strategies for using derivatives,
guantitative disclosures about fair value amouy#s and losses on derivative instruments, araodigres about credit-risk-related
contingent features in derivative agreements mashade. This disclosure framework is intendedetiteld convey the purpose of derivative
use in terms of the risks that an entity is intagdb manage. The adoption of this ASC had nacefie our consolidated financial stateme

The FASB issued ASU 2010-8 in February 2010. ABW®@8 provided technical corrections to ASC 81hisTupdate provides a
four step analysis to determine whether call orguiions that can accelerate the settlement ofidettuments should be considered clearly
and closely related to the debt host contracit isfdetermined that such option is closely raldtethe host contract, bifurcation of the host
contract from the derivative instrument is not reseey. If an existing hybrid instrument requirdsiication under this update, a one-time
election can be made to utilize the Fair Value @pfor the entire contract. This update is effecfor us January 1, 2010 and has no
material effect on our consolidated financial staats.

ASU 2010-11 was issued in March 2010 and definscbpe exception for embedded derivative featutéshninvolve only the
transfer of credit risk that is only in the formsfbordination of one financial instrument to amothSuch instruments would not be subject to
bifurcation under ASC 815. This guidance is effexfor the first quarter beginning after June 2610, however early adoption for the first
fiscal quarter is allowed. We elected to adopttfier first quarter of 2010. Adoption has no effectour consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820)

In response to the deterioration of the credit raerkFASB issued guidance clarifying how fair vatueasurements should be apg
when valuing securities in markets that are navactThe guidance provides an illustrative examptiizing management’s internal cash
flow and discount rate assumptions when relevaséntable data does not exist. It further clarifiesy observable market information and
market quotes should be considered when measwingdiue in an inactive market. It reaffirms thation of fair value as an exit price as of
the measurement date and that fair value analysisransactional process and should not be breguiljed to a group of assets. The
guidance was effective upon issuance includingrgrésiods for which financial statements had na@rbissued. The implementation of this
guidance did not have a material effect on thevalue of our assets as our historical valuatiothogologies complied with the new
guidance.

In October 2008 the EESA was signed into law. i8act33 of the EESA mandated that the SEC condstidy on mark-to-market
accounting standards. The SEC provided its stadle U.S. Congress on December 30, 2008. Péreaecommendations within the study
indicated that fair value requirements should be improved throdgbelopment of application and best practices guiddor determining fa
value in illiquid or inactive markets.” As a resaf this study and the recommendations thereimpml 9, 2009, the FASB issued additional
guidance for determining fair value when the volwend level of activity for the asset or liabilitgve significantly decreased when compared
with normal market activity for the asset or liatyil(or similar assets or liabilities). The guidangives specific factors to evaluate if there has
been a decrease in normal market activity and, ipsavides a methodology to analyze transactiorguoted prices and make necessary
adjustments to fair value. The objective is teed®ine the point within a range of fair value esties that is most representative of fair value
under current market conditions. This guidanceabrexeffective for the June 30, 2009 reporting meribhe adoption did not have a material
impact on the manner in which we estimate fair @ahor did it have any impact on our footnote aisates.
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In August 2009, FASB issued ASU 2009-05 regardirgfair value measurement of liabilities. The gmide states that a quoted
price for the identical liability when traded asasset in an active market is a Level 1 fair vaheasurement. If the value must be adjusted
for factors specific to the liability, then the adiment to the quoted price of the asset shallenetiné fair value measurement of the liability a
lower level measurement. This guidance had nonmahtffect on the fair valuation of our liabiliseas we do not fair value our liabilities.

In September 2009, FASB issued ASU 2009-12 on migsthe fair value of certain alternative invesiitse This guidance offers
investors a practical expedient for measuring #ievialue of investments in certain entities theltulate net asset value or NAV per share. If
an investment falls within the scope of the ASI, taporting entity is permitted, but not requiredise the investment’s NAV to estimate its
fair value. This guidance had no material effettlme fair valuation of our assets, as we do nit hoy assets qualifying under this guidance.

In January 2010, FASB issued ASU 2010-06, whicheiases disclosure regarding the fair value of assete key provisions of this
guidance include the requirement to disclose séglgirine amounts of significant transfers in antlafLevel 1 and Level 2 including a
description of the reason for the transfers. Pngsly this was only required of transfers betweewdl 2 and Level 3 assets. Further,
reporting entities are required to provide fairmeameasurement disclosures for each class of aswi&gbilities; a class is potentially a sul
of the assets or liabilities within a line itemtire statement of financial position. Additionaltiisclosures about the valuation techniques and
inputs used to measure fair value for both recgrand nonrecurring fair value measurements ardnestjfor either Level 2 or Level 3
assets. This portion of the guidance is effediivall interim and annual reporting periods afbecember 15, 2009. The guidance also
requires that the disclosure on any Level 3 assgiesented separately information for purchasales, issuances and settlements. In other
words, Level 3 assets are presented on a grosstatiser than as one net number. However, thigtaton of the guidance becomes
effective for all interim and annual reporting pei$ beginning after December 15, 2010. Adoptiothisfguidance results in increased
footnote disclosure in our consolidated financiatements.

Financial Instruments (ASC 825)

On April 9, 2009, the FASB issued guidance whidjuiees disclosures about fair value of financiskinoments for interim reporting
periods as well as in annual financial statememtss guidance became effective June 30, 2009. atlbption increase footnote disclosure in
the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent Events (ASC 855)

ASC 855 provides general standards governing ad¢itmufor and disclosures of events that occur dfterbalance sheet date thro
the date of issuance of the consolidated finarste&ements but before the financial statementsaned or are available to be issued. ASC
855 also provides guidance on the period afteb#tience sheet date during which management ofaatheg entity should evaluate events or
transactions that may occur for potential recognitir disclosure in the financial statements, fh@umstances under which an entity should
recognize events or transactions occurring afeebtidlance sheet date in its financial statememtghandisclosures that an entity should make
about events or transactions occurring after thenoe sheet date. We adopted this ASC effective 3002009, and adoption had no impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-09 asnaendment to ASC 855. This update eliminateddhjairement to provide a
specific date through which subsequent events exmbiated. The purpose of this update was toiatlepotential conflicts between ASC
855 and SEC reporting requirements. The updateeffastive upon issuance. We have evaluated sukse¢@vents through date of issuance
of this Quarterly Report on Form 10Q.
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Transfers and Servicing (ASC 860)

In February 2008, FASB issued guidance addresshregher transactions where assets purchased frartiaytar counterparty and
financed through a repurchase agreement with tine saunterparty can be considered and accountexs feeparate transactions, or are
required to be considered “linked” transactions ar&y be considered derivatives. This guidanceiregpurchases and subsequent financing
through repurchase agreements be considered linkeshctions unless all of the following conditiapply: (1) the initial purchase and the
use of repurchase agreements to finance the p@eimasot contractually contingent upon each o{{2@the repurchase financing entered
into between the parties provides full recoursthéotransferee and the repurchase price is fix@dhé financial assets are readily obtainable
in the market; and (4) the financial instrument #merepurchase agreement are not coterminous glidance was effective on January 1,
2009 and the implementation did not have a mateffatt on our consolidated financial statements.

On June 12, 2009, the FASB issued ASU 2009-16 andment update to the accounting standards goygtinéntransfer and
servicing of financial assets. This amendment wgxdtte existing standard and eliminated the corafepQSPE, clarifies the surrendering of
control to effect sale treatment, and modifiesfthancial components approach — limiting the cirstamces in which a financial asset or
portion thereof should be derecognized when thesfegior maintains continuing involvement. It defirthe term “Participating
Interest”. Under this standard update, the transferor musigréze and initially measure at fair value all assibtained and liabilities incurr
as a result of a transfer, including any retaineddficial interest. Additionally, the amendmentuiegs enhanced disclosures regarding the
transferors risk associated with continuing invahemt in any transferred assets. The amendmeneffeaive beginning January 1, 2010
and had a material impact on our consolidated Girmistatements. See discussion under ConsalidéfiSC 810) above.

Financial Condition

At March 31, 2010, our portfolio consisted of $#ilion of nonAgency RMBS, $1.6 billion of Agency RMBS and $44in8lion of
securitized mortgage loans.

The following table summarizes certain charactessaf our portfolio at the quarters ended MarchZ110 and 2009 and quarter
ended December 31, 2009.

December 31,

March 31, 201(  March 31, 200! 2009
Interest earning assets at pe-end, at fair valu $ 6,023,72. $ 1,651,68 $ 4,559,42
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 3,687,33¢ $ 1,033,09- $ 2,365,75:
Leverage at peric-end 1.6:1 2.4:1 1.1:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 0.7:1 1.3:1 0.9:1
Portfolio Composition, at principal valt
Non-Agency RMBS 76.5% 54.2% 67.1%
Senior 31.2% 48.8% 42.1%
Subordinater 28.6% 5.4% 25.(%
Senior, no-retained 16.€% 0.C% 0.C%
Agency RMBS 15.2% 17.4% 25.(%
Securitized loan 8.1% 28.2% 7.3%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 66.2% 64.2% 52.1%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 33.8% 35.8% 47.2%
Annualized yield on average earning assets duhagerioc 10.0/% 6.44% 6.37%
Annualized cost of funds on average borrowed fuhdig the periot 4.5(% 3.4&% 1.51%

As of March 31, 2010, the RMBS in our portfolio wegrurchased at a net discount to their par valugr. RMBS had a weighted
average amortized cost of 73.2% and 69.9% at M3it¢l2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.
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March 31, 201(
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Gross
Unamortized Unamortized Unrealized Unrealized
Principal Valut Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,608,77. $ 102,26¢ $ (113,399 $ 33,007 $ (201,11) $  1,429,53
Subordinater 2,648,171 2,52¢ (1,882,23) 223,04 (43,545 947,96:
Senior, no-retained 1,698,31! 7,73 (168,34() 108,53! (16%) 1,646,08!
Agency RMBS 1,482,47: 51,09¢ - 25,94¢ (724) 1,558,79!
Total $ 743773 $ 163,62¢ $ (2,163,97) $ 390,52¢ $ (245,55) $  5,582,37!
December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross
Unamortized Unamortized Unrealized Unrealized
Principal Valut Premium Discount Gain Loss Fair Value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 2,757,21 % 153 $ (628,209 $ 83,94¢ $ (192,079 $ 2,022,401
Subordinatet 1,616,03: 10,34¢ (1,239,769 65,99¢ (76,145 376,45¢
Agency RMBS 1,616,45! 55,08 (29 20,76% (2,240 1,690,02!
Total $ 598969 $ 66,96 $ (1,868,00) $ 170,70¢ $ (270,469 $  4,088,89

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemtlstated contractual maturities, as they are afteby the contractual lives of the
underlying mortgages, periodic payments of pringipad prepayments of principal. The remainingestatontractual final maturity of the
mortgage loans underlying our portfolio of RMBSgan up to 37 years, but the expected maturitybgestito change based on the
prepayments of the underlying loans. As of MarchZ810, the average final contractual maturityhef RMBS portfolio is 28 years, and as
December 31, 2009, it was 29 years. The estimasighted average months to maturity of the RMB&&tables below are based upon our
prepayment expectations, which are based on bottriptary and subscription-based financial modeBur prepayment projections consider
current and expected trends in interest rateggist@ate volatility, steepness of the yield cuthe, mortgage rate of the outstanding loan, time
to reset and the spread margin of the reset.

The constant prepayment rate, or CPR, attemptsettiqh the percentage of principal that will begaiel over a period of time. We
calculate average CPR on a quarterly basis basedtmmical principal paydowns. As interest ratieg rthe rate of re-financings typically
declines, which we expect may result in lower rafegrepayment and, as a result, a lower portfolRR. Conversely, as interest rates fall, the
rate of re-financings typically increases, whichex@ect may result in higher rates of prepaymedt as a result, a higher portfolio CPR.

After the reset date, interest rates on our hyadidistable rate RMBS securities adjust annuallgdas spreads over various LIB(
and Treasury indices. These interest rates aredutoj caps that limit the amount the applicablerist rate can increase during any year,
known as periodic cap, and through the maturitthefapplicable security, known as a lifetime cape Weighted average periodic cap for the
portfolio is an increase of 0.7% and the weightestage maximum lifetime increases and decreasdhdqortfolio are 5.78%.

The following tables summarize our RMBS accordimghieir estimated weighted average life classificet at March 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009:
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March 31, 201(
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than

one
year and less Greater than
Less than on than five five
year years years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 128,49¢ $ 576,58t $ 724,447 $ 1,429,53
Subordinate 1,41C 40,82¢ 905,72¢ 947,96
Senior, no-retained 153,63 1,492,45. - 1,646,08!
Agency RMBS - 1,181,11. 377,68 1,558,79!
Total fair value $ 283,54: $ 3,29097 $ 2,007,85 $ 5,582,37
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 133,40¢ $ 570,85¢ % 893,37¢ $ 1,597,64.
Subordinatec 1,58¢ 41,42: 725,45¢ 768,46¢
Senior, no-retained 149,77 1,387,94. - 1,537,71!
Agency RMBS - 1,162,17. 371,40: 1,533,57.
Total amortized cos $ 284,77( $ 3,162,338 $ 1,990,231 $ 5,437,39
December 31, 200
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater thar
one
year and les  Greater thar
Less than on than five five
year years years Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 20,53: $ 1,520,800 $ 481,068 $ 2,022,40
Subordinatec 137 204,48: 171,84( 376,45¢
Agency RMBS - 1,690,02 - 1,690,02
Total fair value $ 2067C $ 3,41531 $ 652,90 $ 4,088,89.
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 20,54¢ $ 1,631,46. $ 478,53( $ 2,130,54
Subordinatec 76 244,93 141,59 386,60
Agency RMBS - 1,671,50; - 1,671,50;
Total amortized cos $ 20,62 $ 3,547,900 $ 620,12: $ 4,188,64

Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended Mich 31, 2010 and 2009.
Net Income/Loss Summary

Our net income for the quarter endeddd&1, 2010 was $125.6 million, or $0.19 per sh@w&. net income was generated primarily
by interest income on our portfolio of investmen®ur net income for the quarter ended March 30920as $18.9 million, or $0.11 per
share. We attribute the increase in our net incpareshare for the quarter ended March 31, 20t@rpared to March 31, 2009 to a $4.3
billion increase in interest earning assets inpartfolio of investments.

43




The table below presents the net income/loss sugnfaathe three months ended March 31, 2010 an®200

Net Income/Loss Summary
(dollars in thousands, except for share and peestata)

(unaudited)
For the quarters endt

March 31, 201(  March 31, 200¢
Net Interest Income:
Interest incomt $ 128,98: $ 28,00
Interest expens 7,374 9,04z
Interest income, nc-retained 50,86: -
Interest expense, n-retainec 33,83( -
Net interest incom 138,64 18,96¢

Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (22,687 -
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other compredie income 20,14: -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (2,544 -
Other (losses) gains

Realized gains on sales of investments, 34z 3,62
Realized losses on principal w-downs of no-Agency RMBS (949 -
Total other (losses) gail (607) 3,62
Net investment income 135,49( 22,59:
Other expenses

Management fe 8,11« 2,58:
Provision for loan losse 60€ 234
General and administrative expen 1,16( 90¢
Total other expense 9,88( 3,722
Income before income taxes 125,61( 18,87(
Income taxe: - 1
Net income $ 125,61 $ 18,86¢
Net income per sha-basic and dilute: $ 0.1¢ $ 0.11
Weighted average number of shares outstarbasic and dilute 670,371,02 177,196,95
Comprehensive income:

Net income $ 125,61 $ 18,86¢
Other comprehensive incomr

Unrealized gains on availal-for-sale securitie 241,58: 13,59(
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetket income for

otherthar-temporary credit impairment loss 2,54¢ -
Reclassification adjustment for realized lossein&ancluded in net incom 607 (3,629
Other comprehensive incomnr 244,73. 9,96:
Comprehensive incon $ 370,34: % 28,83:

Net Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average earning assets of $7.2 billion and illion for the quarters ended March 31, 2048 2009, respectively. Our
interest income was $179.7 million and $28.0 millfor the quarters ended March 31, 2010 and 2@&perctively. Our interest income
increase resulted from the increase in our intexasting assets which followed our 2009 and 20&0rs#ary offerings. The annualized yield
on our portfolio was 10.04% and 6.44% for the tprarended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectivEhe increase in the annualized yield is
attributed to accretion on assets purchased afisaynt discounts to par with the proceeds from serondary offerings.

Our net interest income, which equals interestimedess interest expense, totaled $138.6 milliah &h9.0 million for the quarters
ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. @uimterest spread, which equals the yield on warage assets for the period less the
average cost of funds for the period, was 5.54%2a96% for the quarters ended March 31, 2010 af8 2@spectively. We attribute the
increase in net interest income and net interesiashto the increase in higher yielding intereshieg assets following our secondary
offerings.
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The table below shows our average assets heldljritdgest earned on assets, yield on averageesttearning assets, average bal
of repurchase agreements, interest expense, avesagef funds, net interest income, and net istaia@e spread for the quarters ended March
31, 2010, December 31, 2009, September 30, 2068,30 2009, and March 31, 2009, and the year eddedmber 31, 2009.

Net Interest Incom

Yield on

Average Average

Earning Interest Interest
Assets Earned on Earning Average Det Interest Average Cos Net Interest Net Interest
Held Assets Assets Balance Expense of Funds Income Rate Sprea

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the quarter ended

March 31, 201( $7,162,94. $ 179,84! 10.0% $3,660,33 $ 41,20/ 4.5(% $ 138,64: 5.54%
For the year ended

December 31, 20C $4,328,89. $ 298,53 6.9(% $1,724,69: $ 35,08: 2.05% $ 263,45t 4.871%
For the quarter ended

December 31, 20C $6,329,58 $ 100,76! 6.37% $2,266,35 $  8,53( 1.51% $ 92,23¢ 4.8€%
For the quarter ended

September 30, 20( $5,433,32.  $ 104,69 7.71% $2,207,44 $ 9,19i 1.67% $ 95,49: 6.04%
For the quarter ended

June 30, 200 $3,812,89° $ 65,07 6.82% $1,386,53! $ 8,31 2.4(% $ 56,76« 4.43%
For the quarter ended

March 31, 200¢ $1,739,76° $ 28,00 6.44% $1,038,461 $  9,04: 3.48% $ 18,96¢ 2.96%

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $3.7 billion ahd $illion and total interest expense of $41 milland $9.0 million for the
quarters ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectiv@lir annualized cost of funds was 4.50% and%.48 the quarters ended March 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively. The increase ina@stezxpense is related to an increase in the skdet#, non-retained, that we recorded with
the adoption on January 1, 2010 of ASC Topic 81€oaspared to the quarter ended March 31, 2009.

The table below shows our average borrowed fumtisrast expense, average cost of funds, averagmonth LIBOR, average Six-
month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR relative termge six-month LIBOR, and average cost of funligive to average one- and six-
month LIBOR for the quarters ended March 31, 2@&;ember 31, 2009, September 30, 2009, June 30, 268 March 31, 2009, and the
year ended December 31, 20
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Average Cost of Func

Average
One- Average Cos
Month of Funds Average Cos
LIBOR Relative to of Funds
Average Average Realtive to Average Relative to
Average Average One- Six- Average Six- One- Average Six-
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Month Month Month Month
Funds Expense Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse

For the quarter ended
March 31, 201( $3,660,33- $ 41,20« 4.5(% 0.22% 0.4(% (0.17%) 4.27% 4.1(%
For the year ended
December 31, 20C $1,724,69: $ 35,08: 2.05% 0.3%% 1.12% (0.7<%) 1.7(% 0.91%
For the quarter ended
December 31, 20C $2,266,35 $  8,53( 1.51% 0.24% 0.52% (0.28%) 1.27% 0.9%
For the quarter ended
September 30, 20( $2,207,44. $  9,19i 1.67% 0.27% 0.84% (0.57%) 1.4(% 0.82%
For the quarter ended
June 30, 200 $1,386,53' $§ 8,31 2.4(% 0.37% 1.3<% (1.02%) 2.05% 1.01%
For the quarter ended
March 31, 200¢ $1,038,46 $ 9,04: 3.4&% 0.46% 1.7/% (1.28%) 3.02% 1.74%

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended March 31, 2010, we sadétaswith a carrying value of $89.6 million whigsulted in a net gain of
approximately $342 thousand. During the quartéledrMarch 31, 2009 we sold assets with a carryaigevof $544.8 million which resulted
in a net gain of approximately $3.6 million in thearter ended March 31, 2009.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Exges

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $8.1 million &&d million for the quarters ended March 31, 2ah@ 2009,
respectively. The management fee is based ontsttaide’s equity and the increase in the manageffeerfior the quarter ended March 31,
2010 resulted from the increased equity due tatmepletion of secondary offerings of common stogkirey 2009.

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses, idiclg the provision for loan losses, were $1.8 wrilland $1.1 million for the
quarters ended March 31, 2010 and 2009, respectivel&A expenses increased during the period diregrily to an increase in the
provision for loan losses.

Total expenses as a percentage of average totbassre 0.73% and 0.94% for the quarters endedhvatl, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The decrease in total expensegascantage of average total assets is the resait bfcrease in the asset base due to the
completion of two secondary offerings of commorcktduring 2009.

Currently, FIDAC has waived its right to requiretagpay our pro rata portion of rent, telephonéitiess, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegukases of FIDAC and its affiliates required for operations.

The table below shows our total management feeGRW expenses as compared to average total assé@mvanage equity for the
quarters ended March 31, 2010, December 31, 2@8eber 30, 2009, June 30, 2009, March 31, 20@Pfa the year ended December
31, 20009.
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Management Fees, Loan Loss Provision and G&A Exgeand Operating Expense Ra

Total Total
Total Management Management
Management Fee, Loan Loss Fee, Loan Loss

Fee, Loan Loss

Provision and

Provision and

Provision and G&A G&A
G&A Expenses/Total Expenses/Averay

Expense! Assets Equity

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 9,88( 0.75% 1.7%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 32,865 0.9% 2.25%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 11,44¢ 1.02% 2.12%
For the quarter ended September 30, - $ 9,75: 0.91% 1.8%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 7,94¢ 1.06% 2.61%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 3,722 0.94% 3.51%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $125.6 million and $18.9 millfonthe quarters ended March 31, 2010 and 208peatively. The table belc
shows our net interest income, gain (loss) onahessets, unrealized gains (loss) on intereststaéps, total expenses, income tax, each as a
percentage of average equity, and the return orageesquity for the quarters ended March 31, 2DE@ember 31, 2009, September 30,
2009, June 30, 2009, and March 31, 2009, and thegreded December 31, 2009. Our return on averaugity increased from 17.82% for
quarter ended March 31, 2009 to 22.73% for thetquanded March 31, 2010 due to increased net inammaverage equity and a reduction
in total administrative and operating expensediuedo average equity.

Components of Return on Average Eqt

Realized Gail
(Loss) on Unrealized
Sales Gain (Loss) ol Total
Net Interest and Interest Rate  Expenses/ Income Return on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average Swaps/Averac Average Tax/Averag: Average
Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
(Ratios have been annualize
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 25.09% (0.57%) 0.0(% (1.79%) 0.0(% 22.7%
For the year ended December 31, 2 18.0:% 6.41% 0.0(% (2.25%) 0.0(% 22.1%
For the quarter ended December 31
2009 17.0%% 2.72% 0.0(% (2.12%) 0.0(% 17.6%
For the quarter ended September 3(
2009 18.4"% 13.9% 0.0% (1.8%%) 0.0(% 30.55%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 19.08% 0.95% 0.0(% (2.67%) 0.0(% 17.36%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( 17.91% 3.42% 0.0(% (3.51%) 0.0(% 17.82%

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requeats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, fund and mainte
RMBS, mortgage loans and other assets, pay diviland other general business needs. Our prireijpates of capital and funds for
additional investments primarily include earningsnfi our investments, borrowings under securitizegiand re-securitizations, repurchase
agreements and other financing facilities, and geds from equity offerings. We expect these sautéinancing will be sufficient to meet
our short-term liquidity needs.

We expect to continue to borrow funds in the fofmepurchase agreements and, subject to markeitzore] other types of
financing. The terms of the repurchase transadt@rowings under our master repurchase agreergentrally conform to the terms in the
standard master repurchase agreement as publightbd Becurities Industry and Financial Marketso&sation, or SIFMA, as to repayment,
margin requirements and the segregation of allr#ezziwe have initially sold under the repurchtts@saction. In addition, each lender
typically requires that we include supplementaingiand conditions to the standard master repur@meement. Typical supplemental tel
and conditions include changes to the margin maartee requirements, required haircuts, and purghrase maintenance requirements,
requirements that all controversies related ta¢pairchase agreement be litigated in a particukésdiction and cross default
provisions. These provisions will differ for eaahour lenders and will not be determined untilevegage in a specific repurchase transac
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For our short-term (one year or less) and long-téymidity, which include investing and complianaéh collateralization
requirements under our repurchase agreement®(gléuged collateral decreases in value or inteateof margin calls created by
prepayments of the pledged collateral), we alsparlthe cash flow from investments, primarily ntantprincipal and interest payments tc
received on our RMBS and whole mortgage loans, fiashfrom the sale of securities as well as anynary securities offerings authorized
by our board of directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe sgets will be sufficient to enak
us to meet anticipated short-term (one year o) lepsidity requirements such as to fund our inmestt activities, pay fees under our
management agreement, fund our distributions tcktmlders and pay general corporate expenses. Howawecline in the value of our
collateral or an increase in prepayment rates anbatly above our expectations could cause a teanpdiquidity shortfall due to the timing
of the necessary margin calls on the financingngeanents and the actual receipt of the cash retatedncipal paydowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfyliuidity requirements, we may have to sell debadditional equity securities in a common
stock offering. If required, the sale of RMBS oraldrmortgage loans at prices lower than their ¢agryalue would result in losses and
reduced income.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greater tham gear) liquidity and capital resource requiremavitsbe subject to obtaining
additional debt financing and equity capital. Sebje our maintaining our qualification as a REKveell as market conditions, we expect to
use a number of sources to finance our investmerdsiding repurchase agreements, warehouse fasjlgecuritization, commercial paper
and term financing CDOs. Such financing will degp@m market conditions for capital raises and lierinvestment of any proceeds. If we
unable to renew, replace or expand our sourcesafiding on substantially similar terms, it may @an adverse effect on our business and
results of operations. Upon liquidation, holder@of debt securities and shares of preferred sinddenders with respect to other borrowi
will receive a distribution of our available asspt®r to the holders of our common stock.

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&tety2 million and $12.2 million at March 31, 202tdaMarch 31, 2009,
respectively. Our cash and cash equivalents isetkdue to the receipt of principal repaymentsherdst day of the quarter for our RMBS
portfolio.

Our operating activities provided net cash of appnately $75.3 million and $13.8 million for the ajters ended March 31, 2010
and March 31, 2009. The cash provided by opagatativities increased due to the increase inmtetést income earned by the
portfolio. The portfolio of interest earning atsskas increased to $5.6 billion in investmentdlatch 31, 2010 as compared to $1.1 billion at
March 31, 2009.

Our investing activities used net cash of $39.8ioniland $3.9 million for the quarters ended Masdh 2010 and March 31,
2009. During the quarter ended March 31, 201@ti¥ized cash to purchase $442.9 million in se@sitvhich were offset by proceeds from
asset sales that provided approximately $44.2aniklind principal repayments of $358.9 million. iDgrthe quarter ended March 31, 2009
we utilized cash to purchase $607.8 million in siies and sold $548.4 million and received primtipepayments of $55.5 million. The
larger portfolio at March 31, 2010 as compared #rdi 31, 2009 increased principal prepayments whédesales of assets during the quarter
ended March 31, 2009 to reduce our leverage prdwsamificantly more cash flow than opportunistides of assets completed during the
quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Our financing activities used net cash of $15.3iamland $25.2 million for the quarters ended MaBdh 2010 and March 31, 2009,
respectively. The quarter ended March 31, 201@ctfd net cash used for repurchase agreemeng886fZmillion as compared to net cash
used of $2.2 million for the quarter ended MarchZ&109. The use of cash to fund repurchase agrgsrdaring the quarter ended March 31,
2010 was offset by $498.7 million in proceeds freouritized debt borrowings. During the quarteteshMarch 31, 2009 we had no
proceeds from securitized debt borrowings. Paysentsecuritized used net cash of $111.2 milliah%16.0 in the quarters ended March
2010 and March 31, 2009, respectively. This inseda related to the adoption of ASC 860 and ASC@1January 1, 2010 which required
the Company to consolidate certain re-securitipatiansactions completed during 2009 that wereipusly recorded as sales of
investments. Lastly, the payment of dividendstifier quarter ended March 31, 2010 increased ovegraimment of dividends for the quarter
ended March 31, 2009 by $106.7 million due to améased number of shares outstanding and the semedhe dividend per share declared
by the Company.
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At March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the rdfase agreements for RMBS had the following remginiaturities:

March 31, 201( December 31, 20C
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ 203,61¢ $ =
1-30 days (1 1,278,67. 1,772,66.
30 to 59 day: 140,49° 62,24
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day - -
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 63,45: 140,49
Total $ 1,686,23 $ 1,975,40:

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates toteied7.4 million and $259.0 million for the quartersded March 31, 2010 a
December 31, 2009, respective

Increases in short-term interest rates could negjgitffect the valuation of our mortgage-relatsdeds, which could limit our
borrowing ability or cause our lenders to initiatargin calls. Amounts due upon maturity of our repase agreements will be funded
primarily through the rollover/reissuance of refnase agreements and monthly principal and intpagsnents received on our mortgage-
backed securities.

For our short-term (one year or less) and long-téyoidity, which includes investing and complianegh collateralization
requirements under our repurchase agreements(gléudged collateral decreases in value or inveateof margin calls created by
prepayments of the pledged collateral), we alsparlthe cash flow from investments, primarily nawptprincipal and interest payments tc
received on our RMBS and whole mortgage loans, fiashfrom the sale of securities as well as anynary securities offerings authorized
by our board of directors.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe ose@swill be sufficient to enable
us to meet anticipated short-term (one year o) lepsidity requirements such as to fund our inmestt activities, pay fees under our
management agreement, fund our distributions ttkbtmders and pay general corporate expenses. Wwwan increase in prepayment rates
substantially above our expectations could causengorary liquidity shortfall due to the timing thfe necessary margin calls on the finan
arrangements and the actual receipt of the caateceto principal paydowns. If our cash resourcesatany time insufficient to satisfy our
liquidity requirements, we may have to sell invesits or issue debt or additional equity securities common stock offering. If required,
the sale of RMBS or whole mortgage loans at price®r than their carrying value would result indes and reduced income.

Our ability to meet our long-term (greater than gaar) liquidity and capital resource requiremenitsbe subject to obtaining
additional debt financing and equity capital. Sabje our maintaining our qualification as a REWg expect to use a number of sources to
finance our investments, including repurchase ageees, warehouse facilities, securitizations, conecmkpaper and term financing
CDOs. Such financing will depend on market condii for capital raises and for the investment gfanoceeds. If we are unable to renew,
replace or expand our sources of financing on ambisily similar terms, it may have an adverseafta our business and results of
operations. Upon liquidation, holders of our dedturities, if any, and shares of preferred stib@qy, and lenders with respect to other
borrowings will receive a distribution of our awaile assets prior to the holders of our commorkstoc

We are not required by our investment guidelinem#intain any specific debt-to-equity ratio as ved#idve the appropriate leverage
for the particular assets we are financing depend$ie credit quality and risk of those assetsweéleer, our master repurchase agreements
may require us to maintain certain debt-to-equatjos. At March 31, 2010, our total recourse deds approximately $1.7 billion which
represented a recourse debt-to-equity ratio 0fl0.7:

At March 31, 2010, we had no material commitmeatschpital expenditures.

49




Stockholders’ Equity

On September 24, 2009, the Company adopted a dividenvestment and share purchase plan (“DRSPR{& DRSPP provides
holders of record of our common stock an opporjuttitautomatically reinvest all or a portion of itheash distributions received on common
stock in additional shares of our common stock el & to make optional cash payments to purchzeses of our common stock. Persons
who are not already stockholders may also purchaseommon stock under the plan through optionshgayments. The DRSPP is
administered by the Administrator, The Bank of Néark Mellon. During the quarters ended March 301@ and December 31, 2009 there
were no transactions under the DRSPP.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2010, we dedldirédends to common shareholders totaling $1&8lBon, or $0.17 per share,
all of which was paid on April 30, 2010. Duringethuarter ended December 31, 2009, we declarededigts to common shareholders
totaling $113.8 million, or $0.17 per share.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstaraingf March 31, 2010 or December 31, 2009.

On April 1, 2010, we announced the sale of 85,0 $hares of common stock at a price of $3.61 lpatesin a public offering. In
addition, the underwriter exercised the optiondachase an additional 12,750,000 shares of commogk £ cover overallotments. The
aggregate net proceeds we received before expentese sales was approximately $352.9 milliohese sales were completed April 7,
2010.

Related Party Transactions
Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007, we entered into a manageaggaement with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC idi#ed to receive a
management fee and, in certain circumstancesirartation fee and reimbursement of certain expeasafescribed in the management
agreement. Such fees and expenses do not hadeafixkdeterminable payments. The management feg/éble quarterly in arrears in an
amount equal to 1.50% per annum, calculated gusrtdrour stockholders’ equity (as defined in thanagement agreement). FIDAC uses
the proceeds from its management fee in part tacpaypensation to its officers and employees whtwitlosstanding that certain of them also
are our officers, receive no cash compensatiortitjréeom us. The management fee will be reduted not below zero, by our proportion
share of any CDO management fees FIDAC receivesnnection with the CDOs in which we invest, basedhe percentage of equity we
hold in such CDOs.

Financing Arrangements with Affiliates

In April 2009, we entered into a Securities Indystind Financial Markets Association standard prepd form Master Repurchase
Agreement with RCAP Securities, Inc, an affiliafehis standard agreement does not contain anygbquidity, net worth or other similar
types of positive or negative covenants. Ratleraigreement contains covenants that require e lamd seller of securities to deliver
collateral or securities, and similar covenantsalttare customary in the form Master Repurchaseekgeamt. As of March 31, 2010, we wi
financing $147.4 million under this agreement atedgghted average rate of 1.22%. We have been impkante with all covenants of this
agreement since we entered into this agreement.

In March 2008, we entered into a Securities Ingquatrd Financial Markets Association standard preed form Master Repurchase
Agreement with Annaly. This standard agreemensadug contain any sort of liquidity, net worth dher similar types of positive or negat
covenants. Rather, the agreement contains cowetiamitrequire the buyer and seller of securitiedediver collateral or securities, and sim
covenants which are customary in the form MastguRehase Agreement. At March 31, 2010 we hadmenfiing under this agreement. At
December 31, 2009, the Company financed $259.@milinder this agreement at a weighted averagefdtd2%. We have been in
compliance with all covenants of this agreementesime entered into this agreement.
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Restricted Stock Grants

During the quarter ended March 31, 2010, 32,22%eshaf restricted stock we had awarded to our Mariagmployees vested and
585 shares were forfeited or cancelled. We didgnamt any incentive awards during the quarter éidarch 31, 2010.

At March 31, 2010 there are approximately 999 thodsunvested shares of restricted stock issueahptogees of FIDAC. For the
quarter ended March 31, 2010, compensation exgess@eneral and administrative costs associatiwtié amortization of the fair value of
the restricted stock totaled $125,033.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions at March 31, 2010.

March 31, 201(

Greater Thai

Within One  One to Three Three to or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Five Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:
Repurchase agreements for RMBS $ 168623 $ - % - $ - $ 1,686,23
Securitized dek 858,12 1,255,60: 514,61: 1,540,06! 4,168,40!
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 94t - - - 94t
Interest expense on securitized debi 273,07: 408,85: 272,70¢ 933,73: 1,888,36!
Total $ 281838 $ 166445 $ 787,32. $ 2,473,790 $ 7,743,95
(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates for $44illion are included in balanc
(2) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaifadMarch 31, 201(
December 31, 20C
Greater Thal

Within One  One to Thre Three to or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Five Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:

Repurchase agreements for RMBS $ 197540 $ - 8 - $ - $ 1,975,440
Securitized dek 37,19: 70,88¢ 59,38: 240,94! 408,40«
Interest expense on RMBS repurch
agreements (2 1,05(C - - - 1,05(C
Interest expense on securitized debl 19,70¢ 36,82¢ 30,30¢ 132,41¢ 219,25¢
Total $ 203335 $ 107,71 $ 89,68¢ $ 373,36 $ 2,604,11

(1) Repurchase agreements with affiliates for $258illion are included in balanc
(2) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaféDecember 31, 200

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidi@tetities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which wouldehlaeen established for the purpose of facilitatifidoalance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtlvee, have not guaranteed any obligations of uncaeeld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any seditities. As such, we are not materially expaseahy market, credit, liquidity or
financing risk that could arise if we had engagedtich relationships.

Capital Resources

At March 31, 2010, we had no material commitmemtsapital expenditures.
Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetwdsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxatdeme, determined without
regard to the deduction for dividends paid andudiclg any net capital gains. We intend to pay ragguarterly dividends to our
stockholders. Before we pay any dividend, whetbetX.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwisgchvwould only be paid out of
available cash to the extent permitted under ouel@use and repurchase facilities, we must firgtrheth our operating requirements and
scheduled debt service on our warehouse lines ted debt payable.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities areeéntst rate sensitive in nature. As a result, istawges and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chaiigénterest rates do not necessarily correlatk inflation rates or changes in inflati



rates. Our consolidated financial statements apgved in accordance with GAAP and our distribugtioll be determined by our
board of directors consistent with our obligatiordistribute to our stockholders at least 90% ofRHEIT taxable income on an annual bas
order to maintain our REIT qualification; in eadse, our activities and balance sheet are measiitledeference to historical cost and/or -
market value without considering inflation.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURESABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, r market value risk and real
estate risk. While we do not seek to avoid risk plately, we believe the risk can be quantified froistorical experience and we seek to
actively manage that risk, to earn sufficient congagion to justify taking those risks and to mamwapital levels consistent with the risks
undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments and face more credit risk on assetswn which are rated below
“AAA”. The credit risk related to these investmismpertains to the ability and willingness of trerowers to pay, which is assessed before
credit is granted or renewed and periodically neneig throughout the loan or security term. We belithat residual loan credit quality is
primarily determined by the borrowers’ credit ptedi and loan characteristics. FIDAC uses a compisahe credit review process. FIDAC's
analysis of loans includes borrower profiles, a#i a®valuation and appraisal data. FIDAC uses amagating factors such as liquid assets,
low loan to value ratios and job stability in evating loans. FIDAGS resources include a proprietary portfolio manag@mystem, as well
third party software systems. FIDAC utilizes adhparty due diligence firm to perform an independerderwriting review to insure
compliance with existing guidelines. FIDAC selecians for review predicated on risk-based critetieh as loan-to-value, borrower’s credit
score(s) and loan size. FIDAC also outsources wwritarg services to review higher risk loans, eitdee to borrower credit profiles or
collateral valuation issues. In addition to statetsampling techniques, FIDAC creates adverseéittamd valuation samples, which we
individually review. FIDAC rejects loans that f&il conform to our standards. FIDAC accepts onlyéhlmans which meet our underwriting
criteria. Once we own a loan, FIDAC's surveillamrecess includes ongoing analysis through our jEtgry data warehouse and servicer
files. Additionally, the non-Agency RMBS and othABS which we acquire for our portfolio are reviewsdFIDAC to ensure that they
satisfy our risk based criteria. FIDAC’s reviewran-Agency RMBS and other ABS includes utilizing iroprietary portfolio management
system. FIDAC's review of non-Agency RMBS and otA®S is based on quantitative and qualitative asialgf the risk-adjusted returns on
non-Agency RMBS and other ABS present.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many @ast including governmental monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international
economic and political considerations and othetofacbeyond our control. We are subject to interast risk in connection with our
investments and our related debt obligations, whiehgenerally repurchase agreements, warehousefscsecuritization, commercial paf
and term financing CDOs. Our repurchase agreenagntsvarehouse facilities may be of limited duratioat are periodically refinanced at
current market rates. We intend to mitigate thék through utilization of derivative contracts,marily interest rate swap agreements.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihces between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of
our warehouse facilities and repurchase agreenpeotde financing based on a floating rate of iegticalculated on a fixed spread over
LIBOR. The fixed spread varies depending on the typunderlying asset which collateralizes therfitiag. Accordingly, the portion of our
portfolio which consists of floating interest ragsets will be match-funded utilizing our expecedrces of short-term financing, while our
fixed interest rate assets will not be match-fund@ating periods of rising interest rates, the baiing costs associated with our investments
tend to increase while the income earned on oedfirterest rate investments may remain substhntiathanged. This will result in a
narrowing of the net interest spread between tlatee assets and borrowings and may even resiaisses. Further, during this portion of the
interest rate and credit cycles, defaults couldease and result in credit losses to us, whichdcadlersely affect our liquidity and operating
results. Such delinquencies or defaults could ladés@ an adverse effect on the spread betweenstiggiening assets and interest-bearing
liabilities. Hedging techniques are partly basedssumed levels of prepayments of our fixed-ratehaorid adjustable-rate mortgage loans
and RMBS. If prepayments are slower or faster tmsumed, the life of the mortgage loans and RMBSowilonger or shorter, which would
reduce the effectiveness of any hedging strategéesiay use and may cause losses on such trangadiiedging strategies involving the use
of derivative securities are highly complex and rpayduce volatile returns.
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Interest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@fthanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We
face the risk that the fair value of our asset$ iwdrease or decrease at different rates thanothadrr liabilities, including our hedging
instruments. We primarily assess our interestrniakeby estimating the duration of our assets &edduration of our liabilities. Duration
essentially measures the market price volatilitfircdncial instruments as interest rates changeg®verally calculate duration using various
financial models and empirical data. Different misdind methodologies can produce different duratiembers for the same securities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signifigamhen interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points from current levels. Thoeegfthe volatility in the fair value of our assetaild increase significantly when interest
rates change beyond 100 basis points. In addibibrer factors impact the fair value of our intemage-sensitive investments and hedging
instruments, such as the shape of the yield cuneeket expectations as to future interest rate gdsiand other market conditions.
Accordingly, in the event of changes in actualriiest rates, the change in the fair value of ouetassould likely differ from that shown abc
and such difference might be material and adverseit stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdetging mortgages are
typically subject to periodic and lifetime intereate caps and floors, which limit the amount bycltthe security’s interest yield may change
during any given period. However, our borrowingtsgsursuant to our financing agreements will nostgject to similar restrictions.
Therefore, in a period of increasing interest ratgerest rate costs on our borrowings could iaseawithout limitation by caps, while the
interest-rate yields on our adjustalpégée mortgage loans and RMBS would effectivelyitvetéd. This problem will be magnified to the ext:
we acquire adjustable-rate RMBS that are not basedortgages which are fully indexed. In additittvg mortgages or the underlying
mortgages in an RMBS may be subject to periodiemayt caps that result in some portion of the isteloeing deferred and added to the
principal outstanding. This could result in ouragt of less cash income on our adjustable-ratégages or RMBS than we need in order to
pay the interest cost on our related borrowinggseéhfactors could lower our net interest incomeamise a net loss during periods of rising
interest rates, which would harm our financial déind, cash flows and results of operations.

Interest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitiohtybrid adjustable-rate mortgages and RMBS witirdwings that, after the effect
of hedging, have interest rates based on indicéseypricing terms similar to, but of somewhat shortetumities than, the interest rate indi
and re-pricing terms of the mortgages and RMBS sThumost cases the interest rate indices andieagp terms of our mortgage assets and
our funding sources will not be identical, theregating an interest rate mismatch between assdtlabilities. Therefore, our cost of funds
would likely rise or fall more quickly than wouldipearnings rate on assets. During periods of dhgrigterest rates, such interest rate
mismatches could negatively impact our financialdition, cash flows and results of operations. Titigate interest rate mismatches, we r
utilize the hedging strategies discussed above aDalysis of risks is based on FIDA®xperience, estimates, models and assumptiopse
analyses rely on models which utilize estimatefainfvalue and interest rate sensitivity. Actuabeemic conditions or implementation of
investment decisions by our management may prodastats that differ significantly from the estimat@nd assumptions used in our models
and the projected results shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolion@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselygtteduring any period as a result
of changing interest rates. The following tablafifies the potential changes in net interestime@nd portfolio value should interest rates
go up or down 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assuthmgield curves of the rate shocks will be patdth each other and the current yield
curve. All changes in income and value are measaseercentage changes from the projected ne¢shi@come and portfolio value at the
base interest rate scenario. The base interesscahario assumes interest rates at March 31,&@d 0arious estimates regarding prepay!
and all activities are made at each level of ratiek. Actual results could differ significantlyofn these estimates.
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March 31, 201(

Projected Percentage

Projected Percentage
Change in Portfolio

Change in Net Intere Value

Change in Interest Ra Income % %

-75 Basis Point 12.5% 4.01%
-50 Basis Point 9.1% 2.67%
-25 Basis Point 5.8€% 1.3%%
Base Interest Ra

+25 Basis Point (2.05%) (1.32%)
+50 Basis Point (3.57%) (2.64%)
+75 Basis Point (5.0€%) (3.94%)

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesesitments, premiums paid on such investments wilrhertized against interest
income. In general, an increase in prepayment wateaccelerate the amortization of purchase prens, thereby reducing the interest
income earned on the investments. Conversely, digs@n such investments are accreted into intaresme. In general, an increase in
prepayment rates will accelerate the accretioruotipase discounts, thereby increasing the intérestne earned on the investments.

Extension Risk

FIDAC computes the projected weighted-averagedtifeur investments based on assumptions regardangate at which the
borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgagesgémeral, when fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-ratetgage loans or RMBS are acquired
with borrowings, we may, but are not required tdeeinto an interest rate swap agreement or ¢tbeging instrument that effectively fixes
our borrowing costs for a period close to the andited average life of the fixed-rate portion of tielated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates because totving costs are fixed for the duration of theefi-rate portion of the related
assets. However, if prepayment rates decreasesimg interest rate environment, the life of theed-rate portion of the related assets could
extend beyond the term of the swap agreement er bddging instrument. This could have a negatiygaict on our results from operations,
as borrowing costs would no longer be fixed aftierénd of the hedging instrument while the incoamaed on the hybrid adjustable-rate
assets would remain fixed. This situation may absese the market value of our hybrid adjustable-a@asets to decline, with little or no
offsetting gain from the related hedging transargidn extreme situations, we may be forced toassets to maintain adequate liquidity,
which could cause us to incur losses.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind &sses excluded from earnings and
reported in other comprehensive income. The estidhair value of these securities fluctuates prilpaiue to changes in interest rates,
prepayment speeds, market liquidity, credit quakityd other factors. Generally, in a rising ins¢rate environment, the estimated fair value
of these securities would be expected to decreaswersely, in a decreasing interest rate envirointiee estimated fair value of these
securities would be expected to increase. As maKatility increases or liquidity decreases, faie value of our investments may be
adversely impacted. If we are unable to readiligimbindependent pricing to validate our estimdtadvalue of securities in the portfolio, the
fair value gains or losses recorded in other cohmgmisive income may be adversely affected.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayreahproperty directly in the future. Residenpabperty values are subject to
volatility and may be affected adversely by a numdfdactors, including, but not limited to, natanregional and local economic conditions
(which may be adversely affected by industry slowds and other factors); local real estate conditi@uch as an oversupply of housing);
changes or continued weakness in specific indsstgynents; construction quality, age and designpdeaphic factors; and retroactive
changes to building or similar codes. In additidecreases in property values reduce the valuesafdltateral and the potential proceeds
available to a borrower to repay our loans, whiohl@ also cause us to suffer losses.
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Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REfatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential
mortgage loans, RMBS, and other assets and redafetdagainst the effects of major interest ratengha. We generally seek to manage our
risk by:

« monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the resé¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

« attempting to structure our financing agreementhdwe a range of different maturities, terms, aipatibns and interest re
adjustment period:

« using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, omionaps, floors and forward sales to adjust therést rate sensitivity of o
investments and our borrowing

« using securitization financing to lower averaget @égunds relative to shoterm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pexbdime in contrast to short term financing and ungy dates of the investmel
included in the securitization; al

« actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theeistteate indices, interest rate adjustment periadd, gross reset margins of
investments and the interest rate indices and ex@rg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets afnilitias are concerned with the timing and magrétod the re-pricing of assets and
liabilities. We attempt to control risks assocthteéith interest rate movements. Methods for euviigainterest rate risk include an analysis of
our interest rate sensitivity “gap”, which is thée&rence between interest-earning assets ancesttdearing liabilities maturing or re-pricing
within a given time period. A gap is considereaipee when the amount of interest-rate sensitsgets exceeds the amount of interest-rate
sensitive liabilities. A gap is considered negativhen the amount of interest-rate sensitive liddsl exceeds interest-rate sensitive
assets. During a period of rising interest radesegative gap would tend to adversely affectmetrést income, while a positive gap would
tend to result in an increase in net interest ireomuring a period of falling interest rates, gative gap would tend to result in an increas
net interest income, while a positive gap woulditemaffect net interest income adversely. Becdiféerent types of assets and liabilities
with the same or similar maturities may react défely to changes in overall market rates or cao$, changes in interest rates may affect
net interest income positively or negatively eviean institution were perfectly matched in eachumiat category.

The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imterest-bearing liabilities at
March 31, 2010. The amounts of assets and liegsilghown within a particular period were deterrdiimeaccordance with the contractual
terms of the assets and liabilities, except adplsteate loans, and securities are included irp#hvéd in which their interest rates are first
scheduled to adjust and not in the period in whidy mature and does include the effect of thedésterate swaps. The interest rate
sensitivity of our assets and liabilities in thbléacould vary substantially if based on actuappsenent experience.
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Greater than

Within 3 1Yearto3 3

Months 3-12 Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 284161 $ 1,187,790 $ 4,132,81. $ 2,092,360 $ 10,254,59
Cash equivaleni 44,20( - - - 44,20(
Total rate sensitive asse 2,885,81 1,187,79! 4,132,81. 2,092,36! 10,298,79
Rate sensitive liabilitie 3,702,93! 63,45: - - 3,766,38
Interest rate sensitivity gé $ (817,12) $ 1,124,34. $ 4,13281. $ 2,092,360 $ 6,532,40
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $ (817,12) $ 307,22: $ 4,440,030 $ 6,532,40
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap &
percentage of total rate sensitive as -8% 3% 43% 63%

Our analysis of risks is based on FIDAC's expergmstimates, models and assumptions. These asably on models which
utilize estimates of fair value and interest raesitivity. Actual economic conditions or implent&tion of investment decisions by FIDAC
may produce results that differ significantly fréhe estimates and assumptions used in our modeltharprojected results shown in the
above tables and in this report. These analysatsicocertain forward-looking statements and atges to the safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading, “Special Note Regarding Forwanmoking Statements.”

56




ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURE
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifjor CEO, and Chief Financial Officer, or CFOyiesved and evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of aseldsure controls and procedures (as defined ie RB&-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act) as of the end of the pesavered by this quarterly report. Based on téeiew and evaluation, the CEO and CFO
have concluded that our current disclosure contmésprocedures, as designed and implemented efE) eifective in ensuring that
information regarding the Company and its subsielais made known to our management, includingGi® and CFO, as appropriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sand (2) were effective in providing reasonabkuemnce that information the Company
must disclose in its periodic reports under theuites Exchange Act is recorded, processed, suimethand reported within the time perii
prescribed by the SEC's rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls
There have been no changes in our “internal cootret financial reporting” (as defined in Rule 1B&({) under the Securities

Exchange Act) that occurred during the period ceatday this quarterly report that has materiallyetféd, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal controls over financial refogt
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be involved in variousiicls and legal actions arising in the ordinary sewf business. In the opinion
management, the ultimate disposition of these msattédl not have a material adverse effect on amsolidated financial statements.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the ris&rfadisclosed in Item 1A — Risk Factors of our tmesent annual report on Form
10-K and our subsequent quarterly reports on F@+®1 The materialization of any risks and uncettas identified in our forward looking
statements contained in this report together witisé¢ previously disclosed in the Form 10-K or sgbeat Form 10-Qs or those that are
presently unforeseen could result in significanteade effects on our financial condition, resuftsjgerations and cash flows. See Item 2.
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations — Special NRegarding Forward-Looking
Statements” in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q.
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Item 6.

Exhibits:

EXHIBITS

The exhibits required by this item are set fortttlma Exhibit Index attached hereto

Exhibit
Number
3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

EXHIBIT INDEX
Description

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chintievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1he Companys Registratio
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and iraraited herein by
reference’

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentpgwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company'sgert on Form 8-K filed on
May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refere

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Invessti@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Comya Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 2 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and incaaifd herein by
reference’

Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimakeestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and iraratpd herein by
reference’

Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, CHi@fiancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant tet®e 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Eutice Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of A. Alexandra Denahan, CHid@fiancial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant toll&.C. Section 1350 as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersignedetimen duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: /sl Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
May 10, 201(

By: /sl A. Alexandra Denahe
A. Alexandra Denahai
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige
May 10, 2010
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Exhibit 31.]
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleadir
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjy@nd other financial information included ifstteport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officerdanare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresagsed such disclosure controls and proceduré® tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being preparec

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenadsurance regarding the reliability of finaneigporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseantekis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegpeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrargt’internal control over financial reportil
and

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@uaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrand’ ability to record, process, summarize and rt
financial information; ani

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesrmmagement or other employees who have a significdatin the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: May 10, 201

[/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)




Exhibit 31.z
CERTIFICATIONS
I, A. Alexandra Denahan, certify that:
| have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleadir
with respect to the period covered by this reg

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjy@nd other financial information included ifstteport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods
presented in this repol

The registrant’s other certifying officerdanare responsible for establishing and maintgimisclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18ayHnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresagsed such disclosure controls and proceduré® tdesigne
under our supervision, to ensure that material rmédion relating to the registrant, including itensolidate
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others withose entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report i
being preparec

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenadsurance regarding the reliability of finaneigporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseantekis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegpeovered by th
report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that ha
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrargt’internal control over financial reportil
and

The registrant’s other certifying officerdahhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@uaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorgldhe audit committee of the registrant’s boardicéctors (or persons
performing the equivalent function:

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrand’ ability to record, process, summarize and rt
financial information; ani

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdatin the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: May 10, 201

/sl _A. Alexandra Denaha

A. Alexandra Denaha

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige




Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended
March 31, 2010 to be filed with Securities and Eamde Commission on or about the date hereof (tlepdR”), I, Matthew Lambiase,

President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarka@&ley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
2.

The information contained in the Report fairlegents, in all material respects, the financiabld@n and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coveyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deeméxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
May 10, 2010




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended

March 31, 2010 to be filed with Securities and Eamle Commission on or about the date hereof (tlepdR”), I, A. Alexandra Denahan,

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the Comparertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbaDekey Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairlegents, in all material respects, the financiab@dwmn and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods covieyethe Report

It is not intended that this statement be deemédxtiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/sl A. Alexandra Denahe
A. Alexandra Denaha
Chief Financial Officer
May 10, 201(




